Indiana Election Commission
Minutes
January 4, 2022

Members Present: Paul Okeson, Chairman of the Indiana Election Commission
(“Commission™); Suzannah Wilson Overholt, Vice Chairman of the Commission; Karen
Celestino-Horseman, member; Stephanie Beckley, Proxy for Litany A. Pyle, Member.

Members Absent: Litany A. Pyle, Member.

Staff Attending: J. Bradley King, Co-Director, Indiana Election Division of the Office of the
Secretary of State (Election Division); Angela M. Nussmeyer, Co-Director of the Election
Division; Matthew Kochevar, Co-General Counsel of the Election Division; Valerie Warycha,
Co-General Counsel of the Election Division.

Others Attending: Ms. LeAnn Angerman; Ms. Michelle Fajman; Mr. C.J. Gilsinger; The Hon.

Destry Richey, Cass County Circuit Court Clerk; The Hon. Mike Stajduharm Cass County
Commissioner; Mr. John Tritt; Ms. Cynthia White.

1. Call to Order:

The Chair called the January 4, 2022 meeting of the Commission to order at 1:30 p.m.
EST in Conference Room A, Indiana Government Center South, 402 West Washington
Street, Indianapolis.

2. Transaction of Commission Business:

The Commission proceeded to transact the business set forth in the Transcript of
Proceedings for this meeting prepared by Maria W. Collier, RPR, CRR, of Stewart
Richardson and Associates, which is incorporated by reference into these minutes.
The following scrivener’s error is corrected:

Page 34, line 11, replace “goes” with “does”.

The Commission adjourned its meeting at 2:09 p.m. EST.

Respectfully submitted,

J. Bradley King a gela M Nussmeyer

Co-Director Co-Director
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APPEARANCES
| NDI ANA ELECTI ON COW SSI ON:
Paul Ckeson - Chairnman
Suzannah W1l son Overholt - Vice Chairnman
St ephani e Beckl ey, as Proxy for Litany Pyle -

Karen Cel esti no-Horsenan - Menber

| NDI ANA ELECTI ON DI VI SI ON STAFF:
Angela M Nussneyer - Co-Director
J. Bradley King - Co-Director
Mat t hew Kochevar - Co- Counsel

Val eri e Warycha - Co- Counsel

Member
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Call to Order and Determ nati on of
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Docunent ati on of Conpliance wth Open
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County Precinct
Orders

Boundary Est abli shnent
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CHAI RVAN OKESON:  All right. Noting it's
1:30, I'"'mgoing to call the Indiana Election
Comm ssion public session to order. Today is
Tuesday, January 4, 2022, 1:30, Conference Room A
here in Governnment Center South. Noting that we
have a full conm ssion present: Mself, Chairmn
Paul Ckeson; Vice-Chair Suzannah W1 son Overholt;
Menber Karen Cel estino-Horseman; and proxy for
Litany Pyle, Stephanie Beckl ey.

| also note that the Indiana El ection D vision
co-directors, Brad King and Angi e Nussneyer, are
both present as well as co-counsel Matthew Kochevar
and Val eri e Warycha.

Qur court reporter again is Maria Collier from
Stewart Richardson. And before we go on, if you're
going to conme up and nmake any presentations to the
Comm ssion, I'll ask that you state your nane and
spell it for the court reporter so we have an
accurate record in the m nutes.

Moving on, | would ask that the conpliance
with the Open Door Law has been verified and
confirmw th the co-director.

MR. KING M. Chairman, nenbers of the
Comm ssion, on behalf of nyself and Co-Director

Nussneyer, | certify that proper notice of this
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nmeeting was given in accordance wth the Indiana
Open Door Law.

CHAI RMVAN OKESON:  Thank you.

Wth that, we nove on to adm nistration of the
oath. If you're planning on providing any
information to the Conm ssion today, please rise
and follow the direction of Co-Counsel Kochevar.

MR. KOCHEVAR: If you plan to give testinony
before the Indiana El ecti on Conm ssi on, please
rai se your right hand and please say "I do" after
recitation of the oath.

Do you solemly swear or affirmthat the
testinony you are about to give to the Indiana
El ection Comm ssion is the truth, the whole truth,
and nothing but the truth? Please say "I do."

ALL: | do.

CHAl RMVAN OKESON: Movi ng on, we have adoption
of county precinct establishnent orders by the
Comm ssion. The Conm ssion has received a request
fromthe co-directors for the Conm ssion to conduct
a hearing today under Indiana Code 3-11-1.5-18 to
consi der the approval of county precinct
establ i shnment orders for Lake County, whose
proposed precinct changes have been reviewed by the

El ection Division and O fice of Census Data of the
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Legi sl ative Services Agency, and been found to be
In conpliance with state law, but for which the
county was unable to provide sufficient time for
publication of |egal notice of these proposed
changes so that a voter of the county would have
the right to file an objection to the proposed
changes and request a hearing by the Conm ssion
regarding the matter.

| understand that there are representatives of
Lake County present for the neeting today. Any of
those who would I'i ke to speak on behalf of Lake
County, please step forward.

As we consider any conversation or testinony,
we'll first look at the proposed order, which is
2022-6. |Is there a notion to approve the order?

VI CE CHAI RVAN OVERHOLT: So noved.

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  |I's there a second?

M5. BECKLEY: Second.

CHAl RVAN OKESON:  Having a notion and a
second, we'll now proceed to any testinony.

Go ahead. State your nane for the record.

MS. ANGERVMAN:  LeAnn Angerman. |'mthe
assi stant director for Lake County Board of
El ecti ons and Regi stration.

CHAl RMAN OKESON: Can you spell your nane for
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us.

MS. ANGERVAN:  LeAnn, L-e-A-n-n, Anger man,
A-n-g-e-r-ma-n.

CHAI RMAN CKESON:  Thank you.

M5. FAJMAN. | am M chell e Faj man,
Mi-c-h-e-l1-l-e. Fajman is F-a-j-ma-n. | amthe
di rector of the Lake County Board of Elections and
Regi strati on.

CHAI RVMAN OKESON: Go ahead.

M5. FAJMAN.  Qur subm ssion has now gone
through OCD, and | believe it's been approved by
both of them It was not done in order for us to
meet the legal requirenents of doing the |egal
notice, but | went ahead and posted it anyway in a
way that would be transparent for the voters of
Lake County. So it was posted on the 24th, but at
that point in time, it had not passed their
approval, but, again, just thought 1'd be a little
proactive and if it cane in at the |last m nute,
that it would be ready. So voters of Lake County
have been notified of our changes, and we woul d
request approval.

CHAl RVAN OKESON:  Any questions? Anyone want
to add anyt hi ng?

So we have a notion to accept Order 2022-6 and
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a second. Hearing nothing further, all those in
favor signify by saying "Aye."

VI CE CHAI RVAN OVERHCLT: Aye.

MS. CELESTI NO- HORSEMAN:  Aye.

MS. BECKLEY: Aye.

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  Aye.

The "ayes" have it. The notion carries.
Thank you.

M5. FAJMAN.  Thank you very nuch.

M5. ANGERMAN:  Thank you very nuch for your
tine.

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  Appreci ate you com ng all
this way to be with us.

M5. ANGERVAN.  Happy to do so.

CHAl RMAN OKESON:  Next item on the agenda,
yesterday an objection to proposed precinct
establ i shment orders from Cass County was fil ed
with the Indiana Election Division. A copy of the
obj ection, which consists of two docunents, is
i ncluded in our binder under the Cass County tab.

Bef ore proceeding, | nove the Conmm ssion adopt
the foll ow ng procedures for consideration of the
matter, which are based on the procedures we've
used for conducting candi date chal | enge heari ngs

previ ously.
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The hearing will begin by recogni zing El ection
Division staff to provide information about the
docunents provided to the Conm ssion nenbers,

i ncluding the orders issued by the Cass County

Comm ssioners, the Election D vision co-directors,
and notice of this neeting given to the county and
the objector, Ms. Cynthia Wiite. Unless there is
obj ection, the docunents provided to the Comm ssion
by the Election Division will be entered into the
record of this neeting.

After the Election Division staff conpletes
its presentation, the challenger, Ms. White, wll
be recogni zed first. The challenger or challengers
or authorized representative may present their case
for not nore than seven m nutes, unless the
Comm ssion votes to allow additional tinme to the
presenter. Conm ssion nmenbers may ask questions
during the presentation, but the tinme spent
answering those questions will not count against
the seven mnutes allocated. The Election Division
may signal the Chair, nyself, when the presenter's
time is up.

| f any presenter offers additional docunents
or physical evidence not previously received by the

Comm ssion, then the original nust be provided to
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the Election Division, and |I'd ask that you hand it
to our co-counsel, Valerie Warycha, down here on ny
right to preserve for the record.

A representative for Cass County Conm ssioners
wi Il be recognized follow ng the presentation of
the objector. The county representative may al so
present their case for not nore than seven m nutes,
unl ess the Comm ssion votes to all ow additional
time for the presenter from Cass County.

Foll ow ng the presentation by the objector,
the county representatives may cross-exam ne the
objector. Follow ng the presentation by the county
representative, the objector may cross-exam ne the
county representative. The cross-exam nation in
all cases wll be limted to two m nutes, unless
t he Conmi ssion votes to allow additional tine.
Cross-exam nation nmust be limted to questions
regardi ng statenents nade by either presenter.
Foll owi ng the presentation by the county
representative, the objector may present a rebuttal
of no nore than two m nutes.

The Comm ssion may di sm ss the cause of any
chal | enger who has failed to appear and testify
bef ore the Conm ssi on.

| s there any objection fromthe Conm ssion
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menbers or any individual present to these
procedures?

VI CE CHAI RVAN OVERHOLT:  No.

CHAl RMAN CKESON:  Hearing none -- do | need a
second?

VI CE CHAI RMAN OVERHCOLT: Do you want a notion
to approve instead of just asking if there's an
obj ecti on?

CHAIl RVAN OKESON: Wl l, | noved it, so is
there a second?

VI CE CHAI RMAN OVERHOLT: Sorry. Second.

CHAl RMVAN OKESON: There's a second. Any
di scussi on on the proposed?

Heari ng none, all those in favor.

VI CE CHAI RVAN OVERHOLT: Aye.

MS. CELESTI NO- HORSEMAN:  Aye.

M5. BECKLEY: Aye.

CHAI RMAN OKESON:  Aye.

These are the procedures.

We'll now begin with consideration of this
matter. The El ection D vision has provided copies
of the docunents from Cass County, the Election
Division, and the Ofice of Census Data and
Legi sl ative Services Agency in this matter, and a

copy of the notice to the president of the Cass
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County Commi ssioners in this matter is in your
bi nder s.

We now recogni ze Cynthia White or her
representative to nmake the first presentation.

M5. VHITE: May | read ny objection?

MS. CELESTI NO- HORSEMAN:  May | ask a question?

CHAl RMAN OKESON:  Sur e,

M5. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN: |Is it the sane
obj ection that you filed with us?

M5. WH TE: Yes, it is.

VI CE CHAl RMVAN OVERHCOLT: You need to state and
spel | your nane.

M5. WHI TE: Go ahead and ask your questi on.

M5. CELESTI NO- HORSEMAN:  |'msorry. Yeah
You need to state and spell your nanme for the
record.

M5. WHITE: OCh, excuse ne. M nane is Cynthia
Wiite, CGy-n-t-h-i-a, Wite, Wh-i-t-e.

MR TRITT: Yes. And I'mJohn Tritt, J-o0-h-n,
T-r-i-t-t.

MS. CELESTI NO- HORSEMAN: M. Chai rman?

CHAl RVAN OKESON:  Sure. (Go ahead.

M5. CELESTI NO- HORSEMAN:  One point of order.
Since we have had this and | have reviewed this and

Suzannah has reviewed it and |I'm sure you have, |
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don't know if our other person has had the
opportunity, but | would |like to forego readi ng of
It unl ess soneone here thinks it's necessary. It's
al ready made part of the record.

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  Yeah. I'minclined to
agree, with the exception that they seemto have
driven quite a distance to be here.

M5. CELESTI NO- HORSEMAN: | think she can add
ot her coments.

CHAl RMAN OKESON: We're offering them
seven mnutes, SO --

M5. WHI TE: Honestly, as she pointed out,
what's in nmy objection, | don't really have
anything else to add to it, if that's acceptable.
If not, | would be glad to go ahead and read it.

CHAl RVAN OKESON: Have you had a chance to
review it?

M5. BECKLEY: She's welconme to read it, as far
as |' m concer ned.

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  You' ve got your
seven m nutes. Go ahead.

M5. WHHTE: You would |ike ne to go ahead and
read it?

CHAl RMAN OKESON:  Sure, if you would |ike to.

M5. WH TE: Honestly, what | would prefer to
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do is answer questions, if that's okay. | don't
have to read it.

CHAl RMVAN OKESON: That's conpl etely fine.

Does anyone have any questions?

M5. CELESTI NO- HORSEMAN: | have a questi on.

CHAl RVAN OKESON:  Sure. (Go ahead.

M5. CELESTI NO- HORSEMAN: So | found sone stuff
interesting in your conplaint that |I don't know if
we can necessarily do anything about it, but it's
bot hersonme. The proposed ward and county district
boundary changes, you say those were not fil ed.
How woul d an everyday citizen go about getting a
copy to review to see what the new boundaries are?

M5. WHITE: | appreciate that question. That
is a big part of ny problem W were supposed to
have ten days, the voters, to review this
information. Six of those days the county
courthouse was closed, so we only -- and it was
during a major holiday and a pandemc. | don't
believe that the voters of Cass County were all owed
the anmount of tinme in order to | ook at those
docunents and also -- and to understand them

|'"d |i ke to show you sonething right here.
This was part of what was available. There were

seven pages of these nunbers. These are census
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ward nunmbers. | had no idea what they were.
They're not labeled. | don't think that the
average voter woul d understand what these are, nor
woul d they have had the tinme, even if they did
understand them to --

CHAl RMAN OKESON:  I's that a docunent you
brought with you?

M5. WHITE: Yes, it is.

CHAI RMAN OKESON:  Woul d you pl ease give the
original to Ms. Warycha.

M5. WHITE: Sure. |'ll give you all of them
I f that would be helpful. | think there's even
nore of them | apol ogize for not having them all

separated out for you.

MR TRITT: There's one precinct with two
active voters |isted.

M5. WHITE: There may be duplicates in there
because John is also going through there, but there
are seven pages total.

M5. WARYCHA: |'Il give these to you all to
revi ew t hem now.

VI CE CHAI RMAN OVERHOLT: W can just pass them
al ong.

MR KING And, M. Chairman, we'll direct
those to be | abeled as (bjector's Exhibit No. 1.
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M5. CELESTI NO- HORSEMAN:  So do you want to go
ahead and explain the significance, then, of No. 1
again now that we have a reference nunber for the
record.

M5. WH TE: For those?

MS. CELESTI NO- HORSEMAN:  Yes.

M5. WHITE: As | said, those are census ward
nunbers, which |I've never heard of before. |'m
just here for the voters of Cass County. This is
not sonething -- these pages, these nunbers are not
| abel ed. It does not indicate what they are or
what they represent. And, again, there were only
four days that the public had access to the county
courthouse to even | ook at these. | believe it
woul d probably take a special kind of software in
order to determ ne exactly what these nunbers
nmeant. It would take an extrenely long tine. As
you saw, there's seven pages, and you can see how
many nunbers are on each page.

MR TRITT: It begs the question, is it easier
for whonf? This canme fromthe county conm ssioners,
but it's not easier for the voters, | would
propose. |I'ma voter in Cass County. |It's not
easier for ne.

VI CE CHAI RMAN OVERHOLT: Were the maps -- so
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I n our binders we've got, | think, what |ooks |ike
It's the same docunents as are in Exhibit 1, and
then with those, so it |ooks |ike for each precinct
there's that list that you' ve provided and then a
map of the proposed precinct. Wen you went to

| ook at the docunents, were you able to see kind of
that list and then also what that translated to in
terns of the proposed precinct boundaries?

M5. WHITE: Actually, | was out of town
because it was the holiday, and I did not have an
opportunity to actually go to the courthouse on the
days that they were open. Another voter got access
to those and nade copies of themfor ne.

One of the things that | think is |acking here
as far as the maps go, there's no overlay to show
peopl e what the exact changes are, and | think that
woul d have nade things nuch easier to understand by
t he voters.

V5. CELESTI NO- HORSEMAN:  When did the county
comm ssioners vote on this?

M5. WVWHITE: | don't know.

MS. CELESTI NO- HORSEMAN: WAs there a neeting
noti ced where they sent it out and said it's on the
agenda?

M5. VWH TE: Not that |I'm aware of, not that
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was made to the public. It was probably on their
agenda which they had there at the neeting.

MR TRITT: | don't see it.

MS. CELESTI NO- HORSEMAN:  So the only way,

t hough, that the public could get these to | ook at
themis, nunber one, they'd get it in the form of
census data and, nunber two, they'd have to go down
to the seat of county governnment to be able to get
then? They weren't available on the Internet or
were they published in the newspaper?

M5. WHITE: No, just the notice that it was
going -- that they had been proposed, the boundary
changes, and where they could be seen and what
dates they could be seen, the ten-day period, and
that if you had an objection, it had to be filed by
June 3rd -- or January 3rd at noon.

M5. CELESTI NO- HORSEMAN:  So | notice that
they -- I've just been handed docunents that on
Decenber 20th they did do a notice of proposed
preci nct boundary changes, and they do list the
precincts that were getting the boundary changes.

M5. WHHTE: Do you know where that was posted?

M5. CELESTI NO- HORSEMAN: | ndi ana Medi a G oup
in Geensburg. Oh, what is it?

VI CE CHAl RMVAN OVERHOLT: We can address
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gquestions to the county. | think sonme of these are
nore appropriate probably to the county.

M5. CELESTI NO- HORSEMAN: | woul d agr ee.

Ckay. So you have the problemw th the
noti ce.

M5. WH TE: Correct.

M5. CELESTI NO- HORSEMAN:  Now, novi ng that
I ssue aside, your next issue?

M5. WVHHTE: M next issue is that the newy
proposed precincts for Deer Creek East, Wst, Eel
North, Eel East, Noble North, Logansport 4,

Washi ngton South nmay have famliar names, but it's
not easily found by the voters. And also --

V5. CELESTI NO- HORSEMAN:  Ckay. My question
Is: What do you nean by that? Because once these
precincts are adopted and everything, you can go
to -- there's various software out there, probably
for the county and for the state, where you type in
your address and it wll tell you the precinct and
it will give you the | ocation where you're going to
go vote.

M5. WH TE: kay.

M5. CELESTI NO- HORSEMAN:  And if you register
to vote for the first tine, the county clerk wll

figure out what precinct and everything you bel ong
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I nt o.

M5. WVHITE: Al right.

M5. CELESTI NO HORSEMAN:  So | did have a
guestion as to why that was a concern.

M5. WHITE: Well, the other part of ny concern
Wth those is that | see 3-11-1.5-3.1 states that
precincts may not be established after June 30,
2019, wth fewer than 600 active voters. Sone of
these altered precincts only have four voters, six
voters, or 27 voters.

M5. CELESTI NO- HORSEMAN:  And, you know, | too
thought that's ridiculous. It is ridiculous. But
| al so understand that, the way it's been expl ai ned
tome -- and if I'"mincorrect, please |et me know.
But the way it's been explained to ne is, if you
have a precinct with | ess than 600 voters, you
can't do it unless that precinct crosses, like, a
congressional district line, a township boundary.
Then you can have less than. And | think the
probl em that probably played a role in here in sone
part -- and you live there, | don't -- but they
drew new congressional districts which basically
split your county down the m ddle, which changed
the ball ganme, so to speak. So they can't cross

over that.
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So even though you have -- and |I don't know
whet her you have vote centers there or not, but if
you have -- you do? Well, that will make it
sonmewhat easier, but having to keep track of a
precinct with four voters and to deal wth that,
and 27 voters, |I'msure the clerk would probably
not want to have to worry about that either, but
those do take the priority.

Now, do you understand the |law to be sonethi ng
different?

M5. WVWH TE: Yeah. | think | understand
exactly what you're saying.

M5. CELESTI NO- HORSEMAN:  Okay. So | think

that that was the problem | nean, | think you're
right. | think it's ridiculous. And | do agree
with you on your -- and this is sonmething | wll

ask the county about, is that the reason why they
drew new things was to nmake it easier to draw the
city council districts. That's not a reason that's
in the statutes either.

M5. WH TE: Exactly.

M5. CELESTI NO- HORSEMAN:  So we'll find out
what that neans.

So let's see here. You have "Altered precinct

Logansport 1 under 'CGeneral Precinct |Information'
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does not indicate whether this is a new precinct."”

M5. WHI TE: Un- huh

M5. CELESTI NO HORSEMAN: | think -- was that a
new precinct, Director Nussneyer? OCh, no. | got
it.

MR TRITT: This map.

M5. CELESTI NO- HORSEMAN:  Yeah. They don't --
a new precinct becones one -- the way the change is
interpreted is, if you nove the precinct boundary
line, you're basically draw ng a brand-new
precinct. But when you change the nane only, then
that's not a new precinct. It's just the sane
precinct wwth a different nane. Am| correct?

CHAI RMVAN OKESON:  |I'm going to recogni ze
Co-Di rector King.

MR KING Oh, I'msorry. WM. Chair, nenbers
of the Commi ssion, | was just nentioning that since
the witness presented the map, it would now need to
be provided for the record.

CHAI RMAN OKESON:  Woul d you pl ease provide
that to Val erie Warycha.

MR TRITT: Yes. It appears that wards were
drawn instead of majority popul ati on.

CHAIl RVAN OKESON:  And for the record, will we
make that Exhibit 27?




© 00 N o o B~ W N P

N D N D DNMNMNDN P P PP PR R R R
o A W N P O © 00 N O O b W N B+, O

Page 23

MR, KING Yes.

M5. NUSSMEYER If | mght, M. Chairnman.

CHAl RMVAN OKESON: Pl ease.

M5. NUSSMEYER: So at least in ny view, the
| EC-8 form which is a formcreated by both
co-directors of the Election Division which asks
for a nunber of things fromthe county, including
whi ch precincts nay be inpacted by altering
preci nct boundaries, what the census bl ocks are and
how t hose are -- what census bl ocks conpose, if it
Is a split census block, that there's aerial
I mgery attached to it, the formitself asks a
nunber of things that aren't necessarily required
I n statute.

The term "new precinct,"” at |east fromny
perspective, neans there's been sone sort of change
to the precinct. But as | understand fromthe

O fice of Census Data, if the precinct nanme has not
changed, it is not a new precinct. They only want
to know if it is a new precinct because it is
wholly new So that term if it's a new precinct,
whether it's marked or not, to ne, is not a fatal
flaw wth the | ECG-8 subm ssion because that's
sonewhat subjective, depending on who is conpleting

the formand their understanding of it.
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MR. KING M. Chairman, nenbers of the
Comm ssion, | agree entirely with Co-Director
Nussnmeyer with regard to the | egal requirenents of
the |EC-8 and the fact that "new precinct"” is
sonmewhat anbi guous because different entities use
it in different ways.

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  Sone of this seens to be
spelled out in this meno fromthe Cass County
clerk; correct?

VI CE CHAl RMVAN OVERHCOLT: That's the neno,
yeah, that sets forth the rationale.

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  Yeah, about how t hese
changes, including the renam ng of sonme districts
or sonme precinct boundaries --

VI CE CHAI RMAN OVERHCOLT: Right.

M5. CELESTI NO- HORSEMAN:  Have you seen this
meno? Wait a mnute. Yeah. Have you been
provided a copy of this neno fromthe clerk of the

Cass County courts?

M5. WHITE: | have not.

MS. CELESTI NO-HORSEMAN:  |'m going to give you
a copy of it. It was apparently -- was it filed on
the 1st?

M5. NUSSMEYER  That's ny understandi ng, yes.

So the counties have to submt certain
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docunentation to the State as part of our review,
along wwth the Ofice of Census Data, so they woul d
have filed it at the tinme of the initial subm ssion
and worked with their assigned staff person to
perfect the filing until it got to a point where
the co-directors could agree it was in good shape
enough to -- it net the legal requirenents to have
publ i shed noti ce.

CHAI RMAN OKESON:  Woul d you reflect in the
record that she handed the neno to Ms. Wiite.

Any ot her questions?

M5. CELESTI NO- HORSEMAN:  Just a m nute,

M. Chair. | started to call you "Your Honor."

M5. WVWHITE: |'ve had a chance to read it.
Thank you.

M5. CELESTI NO- HORSEMAN: | think we've pretty

much covered it.

CHAl RMVAN OKESON: Did you have anything el se
you' d like to offer?

M5. WHITE: | don't think so at this tine.

M5. CELESTI NO- HORSEMAN:  |s the conpl ai nant
provided tinme for rebuttal ?

CHAl RMAN OKESON:  Yeah, as established in the
rul es.

M5. CELESTI NO- HORSEMAN:  Yeah. That's what |
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t hought .

So you understand that?

M5. WH TE:  Yes.

M5. CELESTI NO- HORSEMAN:  Once you sit down,
then the county wll conme forward and speak --

CHAI RMAN OKESON: Wl |, prior to that, the
county will have an opportunity to cross-exam ne.

MS. CELESTI NO- HORSEMAN:  Ckay, okay. Yeah,

Cr oss-exam ne.

CHAI RMAN CKESON: So you may be asked sone
guesti ons.

M5. WHI TE: Ckay.

CHAl RMVAN OKESON:  Okay. Would nenbers of the
county step forward. State and spell your nanes
for the record, please.

MR. STAJDUHAR: My nane is M ke Stajduhar, and
| definitely need to spell that nane,
S-t-a-j-d-u-h-a-r. Cass County conm ssi oner.

M5. RICHEY: M nane is Destry Richey. |It's
D-e-s-t-r-y, last nane Richey, Ri-c-h-e-y. And
"' mthe Cass County clerk.

MR G LSINGER M nane is C J. G singer.
It's CJ., and Glsinger is Gi-l-s-i-n-g-e-r. And
|"'mthe IT director for Cass County.

CHAl RMAN CKESON:  So prior to giving us your
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presentation, do you have any cross-exanm nation or
gquestions for the objectors?

M5. RICHEY: Did any of you call the Cass
County clerk or the conmm ssioner's office?

M5. WHITE: None of the three of us did.

M5. RICHEY: D d any of you send an email to
t he comm ssioner or Cass County clerk's office?

M5. WHITE: | believe Lita Rouser did. As |
said, there were several people that were
concerned, and | know Lita had taken it upon
herself to email.

M5. RICHEY: And Lita is the --

M5. WHITE: She is the chairman of the Cass
County Denocr ats.

CHAI RMAN OKESON:  Woul d you m nd spelling her
name?

M5. WHITE: Lita Rouser, L-i-t-a, R oO-u-s-e-r.

CHAI RMVAN OKESON:  Thank you.

M5. RICHEY: Did any of you actually cone in
to the courthouse to view the docunents that we had
I n the binder that was nade available to the
public?

M5. WHHTE: No. As | stated earlier, | was
out of town because of the holiday on the days that

t he courthouse was open. | don't know that -- |
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don't know for sure if anybody el se was there.

M5. RICHEY: W only had two peopl e ask
questions and cone in to | ook, and they were
al ready working in the governnment building. |
spent an hour with each one of them explaining
everything, and they did not have any questions
af t erwar ds.

CHAl RMAN OKESON: Ckay. Do you want to just
nove i nto your presentation?

MR, STAJDUHAR: Yes, yes. Let's go ahead and
do that. Thank you for hearing our side of this
matter. 1'd like to nention, first of all, that
not only did we, of course, approve this in a duly
cal l ed neeting of the Conm ssion on Decenber 20th,
but we al so had discussed this at a prior neeting
of the Comm ssion, | believe, back in either late
Sept enber or early Cctober.

| think, as many of you are aware, Cass County
had particularly difficult problens redistricting
because not only were we split between the 2nd and
4t h congressional districts, but the lines did not
respect township Iines and were extrenely
convol uted, which caused us i mrense problens. W
tried to make good faith effort to equalize

districts wwthin our council, for exanple. That
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resulted in having to shift a precinct fromone
council district to another.

There was just a |lot of conplications. W
made our best faith effort. Even wth regard to
the county comm ssioner districts, which we are not
required to equalize because of popul ation, we
actually made a change there to try to nmake that a
little nore equal. So we nmade every possi bl e good
faith effort to do the right thing for the county
vot ers.

|"d like to turn it over now to Destry.

M5. RICHEY: In regards to sone of the
townshi ps, the reason why there's only four or siXx
or 27 is that they only took one census bl ock out
of the township, and we had to turn that into its
own precinct because of congressional lines. Now,
where Deer Creek was concerned, they did sort of
divide that one a little bit better but not by
much. But we've tried to work with what we had.

We al so know that the problemwas that you
have to have, at maxi num a 10 percent popul ation
di screpancy between your |argest council district
and your |owest council district. Qurs was over
20 percent. So we had to redo the precincts to be

able to get every -- the council districts in
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conpliance with that 10 percent.

As M ke stated on the conm ssioners, we tried
to make -- yes, it has to be condensed and
confined, but we did try to divide as best as we
could by population also. So we actually took one
whol e townshi p out of one of the districts and
stuck it in another district to try and nake it as
fair as possible.

MR STAJDUHAR:. And | believe, with regard to
council districts, | think we got our variation
down to 6 percent. Am| correct on that?

M5. RICHEY: It's alnost at 10 percent, but,
remenber, we had that new housing addition com ng
in --

MR, STAJDUHAR  That's right.

M5. RICHEY: -- so we nmade that |ow one the
housi ng addition, so once that goes in in one or
two years, we're still in conpliance.

M5. CELESTI NO- HORSEMAN:  Just a note. \at we
have been finding here in our comm ssion is that
the public really seens to be -- transparency is
t he new buzzword, especially for the political
process. And so it doesn't matter whether they're
Republicans; it doesn't matter whether they're

Denocrats. They cone together in unity on that
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particul ar issue.

So I can understand the concern. | nean, |
understand the difficulty you had in putting this
all together because of the change in the
congressional districts. But | would just say for
the future, as we're finding, if you want to avoid
this kind of thing, if you can put it on your
websites and tell people to go to the website and
just be honest and say we're dealing with this; if
you have a map, put it up there; if you don't have
a map, tell themwe don't have a map but this is
what we have.

M5. RICHEY: 1'mgoing to defer to C.J. W do
have a G S on our website that they can | ook at and
put in their address and --

M5. CELESTI NO- HORSEMAN:  But |'mtal ki ng about
the process beforehand. |If you're going to tell
themin the mddle of a pandem c over a holiday
that you've got ten days to file a question or
conpl aint, you need to give themaccess to it. |
nmean, there are people -- even though the
court house woul d have been open for four of those
ten days, there's still people out there that don't
want to, because they're inmunoconprom sed or

what ever, that do not want to have to go sonewhere.
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M5. RICHEY: And | did -- back in Cctober,
when | sent everything in to the Election
Departnent -- Comm ssion, | also emailed the county
chairs all those IEC-8s and all the maps and
everything, and | do have the emails to prove it.

| then redid it |ast week per Lita's -- Lita
Rouser's emails to ne, and at 3:00 a.m, | received
the last one. So | went in early at 6:30 and
scanned it all back in and sent it back out to
everybody so that we could be as transparent,
because | understand that people are scared to cone
out, we're in a pandemc. And we have tried
everything possible that we could to nake it as
transparent as possible. And | would have taken
the tinme out, Mke would have taken the tine out,
C.J. would have taken the tinme out to talk to
people. | even gave ny cell phone nunber out.

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  And | note too for the
record in her cross-exam nation asking if they
reached out, other than the email, which you sound
i ke you' ve been quite responsive to, from
Ms. Rouser, there has been not hi ng.

M5. RICHEY: Yes, correct.

MS. CELESTI NO- HORSEMAN:  So the nmaps were done
i n Qctober?
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M5. RICHEY: That's when we submtted all of
the proposals to the Indiana Election Division. W
actually sent it in October 14th.

MS. CELESTI NO- HORSEMAN: But after they cone
in, they have to be approved by the census group
and they have to be approved by our co-directors.

M5. RICHEY: Right, right.

M5. CELESTI NO- HORSEMAN:  And then you finally
get the word back that it's okay.

M5. RICHEY: That it's okay to put it in the
paper. And we received notice -- | think it was
signed on the 14th by the Election Conm ssion, and
we received it about that tine.

CHAI RVAN OKESON: The 14t h of Decenber?

M5. RICHEY: Decenber. Sorry. And then we
had to wait for the weekend. The conmm ssioners net
on the 20th to sign the order, the ordinance, and
then to give the okay to put it in our paper. Qur
paper requires three days before they' Il even put
it in. So they were going to put it on
Decenber 24th, and our auditor worked sone magic
and got it in on Decenber 23rd.

MR, STAJDUHAR: In sunmary, we basically, we
bel i eve, nade good faith effort not only in terns

of the notification and the procedure, but also in




© 00 N o o B~ W N P

N D N D DNMNMNDN P P PP PR R R R
o A W N P O © 00 N O O b W N B+, O

Page 34

ternms of the substance. W did everything
possi bl e, given what | think was a very difficult
situation for Cass County.

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  Yeabh.

MS. CELESTI NO-HORSEMAN: |'l1 ask one question
because | said | would, the thing about where the
reason you gave was that it was --

M5. RICHEY: It was easier.

M5. CELESTI NO- HORSEMAN: - - easi er.

M5. RICHEY: We worked with Lori, and we're,
like, there's this little-bitty line, and she goes
try to be as precise as possible. Because we knew
we were going to have to do mmjor reprecincting, we
did reach out to the city because it was going to
affect their wards. And we knew if we didn't take
care of it all this year, we were going to have to
go back again next year when they redid their wards
and do this all over again. So we did contact
them and that's why it says easier to help with
the city wards.

M5. NUSSMEYER: M. Chairman, if | could, just
to help provide a little nore context.

CHAl RMVAN OKESON: Pl ease.

M5. NUSSMEYER: The redistricting standards

are different than our reprecincting standards in
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3-11-1.5. So the county has to | ook at too when
they need to recertify or redraw their conm ssi oner
and council districts in 2021. In nearly all
cases, when they draw those districts, they cannot
Cross a precinct boundary.

So if they had popul ati on issues, the real
option for the county is to bust up the precincts
to create what they need in order to achieve their
equal popul ation, which is a requirenent. Wen
they're drawi ng county council districts, it wll
be a requirenment of nmunicipalities in nearly all
cases but not every. There's exceptions to the
statute when they redraw next year in 2022 -- well,
this year when they are conmanded to al so redraw or
recertify those nunicipal district boundari es.

MR, STAJDUHAR: So that issue kind of
conflicted with our other goal of trying to reduce
t he nunber of precincts, so it was a bal anci ng act,
and we did the best we could to allow the city sone
flexibility and al so reduce the nunber of precincts
in the city.

CHAI RMAN OKESON:  Co-Director King.

MR. KING M. Chairman, nenbers of the
Comm ssion, | concur entirely with Co-Director

Nussneyer's description of the various processes
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i nvolved here. It is one that involves several
nmoving parts and different |evels of governnent,
and so it's extrenely conplicated to achieve all of
the steps necessary to conply wth each of the
constitutional or statutory requirenents.

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  Seens like a little bit of
gymasti cs.

MR, STAJDUHAR  Surely.

CHAI RMAN OKESON: Anyt hi ng el se? Any ot her
guestions?

M5. CELESTI NO- HORSEMAN:  Thank you for being
so forthright.

CHAl RMVAN OKESON:  You have an opportunity to

cross-examne, if you'd like it.

M5. WVHITE: | really don't have any
cross-exam nation. | do have a question, though.
|s there a way, if the situation -- this type

situation cones up, is there not a way that those
ten days coul d have been extended because of the
holiday to allow for that?

CHAI RVAN OKESON: Wl l, | think in terns of
our procedures here, you're really limted to ask
t hem questi ons about comments they nade on the
record in terns of the presentation, so I'll have

tolimt you to that.
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M5. WH TE: Ckay.

M5. CELESTI NO-HORSEMAN:. M. Chair, if | may
say sonet hi ng.

CHAl RVAN OKESON:  Sur e.

MS. CELESTI NO- HORSEMAN: That ten days is
prescri bed by statute, so we cannot change the
statute. That's up to the legislature. |t does
seem odd that they put that ten days to run
i ncluding Christmas and New Year's in that, but
t hey di d.

M5. WHITE: Correct. Thank you.

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  And then in addition to your
cross-examnation, if you' d |like a rebuttal to
anything that was said, you're offered that for

two m nutes.

Thank you.

M5. RICHEY: Thank you.

M5. WVWHITE: | think |I've stated everything
that | had -- | felt needed to be addressed.

CHAl RMAN OKESON: Wl l, I'mgoing to close the

hearing on this matter at this point in tine. And
for purposes of discussion, | nove that the
objection filed in this matter be denied and that
t he Comm ssion adopt Order 2022-7 to approve the

Cass County precinct establishnment order.
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|s there a second?

VI CE CHAI RMVAN OVERHOLT:  Second.

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  Any further discussion?

MS. CELESTI NO- HORSEMAN: | just want to say
t hank you for taking the tine out to read the nmaps,
and thank you for deciding to participate in the
process. You know, | nean, it's good the county
got to explain it. You can go back now and tell
peopl e there what the problens were. They
obvi ously were operating under an onerous tine.

The |l egislature split your county, and then you had
census data running |late and everything else. So,
you know, it was just the perfect storm so to
speak.

M5. WHITE: Yeah. Well, | appreciate you
listening to what | had to say, and | al so
appreci ate everything that the comm ssioners -- all
t he hoops you had to junp through.

MR. STAJDUHAR: Thank you.

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  Anyt hi ng el se under
di scussi on?

So we have a notion and a second to approve
2022-7. Hearing no further discussion, all those
in favor signify by saying "Aye."

VI CE CHAI RVAN OVERHCOLT:  Aye.
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MS. CELESTI NO- HORSEMAN:  Aye.

MS. BECKLEY: Aye.

CHAl RMVAN OKESON: The "ayes" have it. The
nmotion carri es.

By consent, can we use signhature stanps for
the orders?

MR. KING For both orders.

CHAI RVAN OKESON:  For bot h orders.

VI CE CHAI RMAN OVERHOLT: Yes, consent.

M5. CELESTI NO- HORSEMAN:  Consent .

M5. BECKLEY: Consent.

CHAIl RMVAN OKESON: W th that, | believe we've
finished our business for the day. |'ll take a
notion to adjourn.

VI CE CHAI RVAN OVERHOLT: So noved.

CHAl RMVAN OKESON:  Second?

M5. CELESTI NO- HORSEMAN:  Second.

CHAl RMVAN OKESON:  All those in favor.

VI CE CHAI RVAN OVERHCOLT: Aye.

MS. CELESTI NO- HORSEMAN:  Aye.

MS. BECKLEY: Aye.

CHAI RMAN CKESON:  Thank you.

(The I ndiana El ecti on Conm ssion Public

Session was adjourned at 2:09 p.m)
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STATE OF | NDI ANA
COUNTY OF HAM LTON

I, Maria W Collier, a Notary Public in and
for said county and state, do hereby certify that the
f oregoi ng public session was taken at the tinme and
pl ace heretofore nentioned between 1:30 p.m and
2:09 p.m;

That said public session was taken down in
st enograph notes and afterwards reduced to typewiting
under ny direction; and that the typewitten
transcript is a true record of the public session.

IN WTNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set ny
hand and affixed ny notarial seal this 12th day of

January, 2022.

Whesa N Cﬂu»
A, W
Maria W. Collier
MOTARY PUBLIC SEAL

STATE OF INDIANA
Commizsion No. NPOES3233
My Commission Expires Dec. 5, 2024

My Comm ssi on expires:
Decenber 5, 2024

Job No. 168495
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      2               INDIANA ELECTION COMMISSION
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      1          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  All right.  Noting it's



      2     1:30, I'm going to call the Indiana Election



      3     Commission public session to order.  Today is



      4     Tuesday, January 4, 2022, 1:30, Conference Room A



      5     here in Government Center South.  Noting that we



      6     have a full commission present:  Myself, Chairman



      7     Paul Okeson; Vice-Chair Suzannah Wilson Overholt;



      8     Member Karen Celestino-Horseman; and proxy for



      9     Litany Pyle, Stephanie Beckley.



     10          I also note that the Indiana Election Division



     11     co-directors, Brad King and Angie Nussmeyer, are



     12     both present as well as co-counsel Matthew Kochevar



     13     and Valerie Warycha.



     14          Our court reporter again is Maria Collier from



     15     Stewart Richardson.  And before we go on, if you're



     16     going to come up and make any presentations to the



     17     Commission, I'll ask that you state your name and



     18     spell it for the court reporter so we have an



     19     accurate record in the minutes.



     20          Moving on, I would ask that the compliance



     21     with the Open Door Law has been verified and



     22     confirm with the co-director.



     23          MR. KING:  Mr. Chairman, members of the



     24     Commission, on behalf of myself and Co-Director



     25     Nussmeyer, I certify that proper notice of this
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      1     meeting was given in accordance with the Indiana



      2     Open Door Law.



      3          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Thank you.



      4          With that, we move on to administration of the



      5     oath.  If you're planning on providing any



      6     information to the Commission today, please rise



      7     and follow the direction of Co-Counsel Kochevar.



      8          MR. KOCHEVAR:  If you plan to give testimony



      9     before the Indiana Election Commission, please



     10     raise your right hand and please say "I do" after



     11     recitation of the oath.



     12          Do you solemnly swear or affirm that the



     13     testimony you are about to give to the Indiana



     14     Election Commission is the truth, the whole truth,



     15     and nothing but the truth?  Please say "I do."



     16          ALL:  I do.



     17          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Moving on, we have adoption



     18     of county precinct establishment orders by the



     19     Commission.  The Commission has received a request



     20     from the co-directors for the Commission to conduct



     21     a hearing today under Indiana Code 3-11-1.5-18 to



     22     consider the approval of county precinct



     23     establishment orders for Lake County, whose



     24     proposed precinct changes have been reviewed by the



     25     Election Division and Office of Census Data of the
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      1     Legislative Services Agency, and been found to be



      2     in compliance with state law, but for which the



      3     county was unable to provide sufficient time for



      4     publication of legal notice of these proposed



      5     changes so that a voter of the county would have



      6     the right to file an objection to the proposed



      7     changes and request a hearing by the Commission



      8     regarding the matter.



      9          I understand that there are representatives of



     10     Lake County present for the meeting today.  Any of



     11     those who would like to speak on behalf of Lake



     12     County, please step forward.



     13          As we consider any conversation or testimony,



     14     we'll first look at the proposed order, which is



     15     2022-6.  Is there a motion to approve the order?



     16          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  So moved.



     17          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Is there a second?



     18          MS. BECKLEY:  Second.



     19          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Having a motion and a



     20     second, we'll now proceed to any testimony.



     21          Go ahead.  State your name for the record.



     22          MS. ANGERMAN:  LeAnn Angerman.  I'm the



     23     assistant director for Lake County Board of



     24     Elections and Registration.



     25          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Can you spell your name for
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      1     us.



      2          MS. ANGERMAN:  LeAnn, L-e-A-n-n, Angerman,



      3     A-n-g-e-r-m-a-n.



      4          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Thank you.



      5          MS. FAJMAN:  I am Michelle Fajman,



      6     M-i-c-h-e-l-l-e.  Fajman is F-a-j-m-a-n.  I am the



      7     director of the Lake County Board of Elections and



      8     Registration.



      9          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Go ahead.



     10          MS. FAJMAN:  Our submission has now gone



     11     through OCD, and I believe it's been approved by



     12     both of them.  It was not done in order for us to



     13     meet the legal requirements of doing the legal



     14     notice, but I went ahead and posted it anyway in a



     15     way that would be transparent for the voters of



     16     Lake County.  So it was posted on the 24th, but at



     17     that point in time, it had not passed their



     18     approval, but, again, just thought I'd be a little



     19     proactive and if it came in at the last minute,



     20     that it would be ready.  So voters of Lake County



     21     have been notified of our changes, and we would



     22     request approval.



     23          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Any questions?  Anyone want



     24     to add anything?



     25          So we have a motion to accept Order 2022-6 and
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      1     a second.  Hearing nothing further, all those in



      2     favor signify by saying "Aye."



      3          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  Aye.



      4          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  Aye.



      5          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



      6          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Aye.



      7          The "ayes" have it.  The motion carries.



      8     Thank you.



      9          MS. FAJMAN:  Thank you very much.



     10          MS. ANGERMAN:  Thank you very much for your



     11     time.



     12          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Appreciate you coming all



     13     this way to be with us.



     14          MS. ANGERMAN:  Happy to do so.



     15          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Next item on the agenda,



     16     yesterday an objection to proposed precinct



     17     establishment orders from Cass County was filed



     18     with the Indiana Election Division.  A copy of the



     19     objection, which consists of two documents, is



     20     included in our binder under the Cass County tab.



     21          Before proceeding, I move the Commission adopt



     22     the following procedures for consideration of the



     23     matter, which are based on the procedures we've



     24     used for conducting candidate challenge hearings



     25     previously.
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      1          The hearing will begin by recognizing Election



      2     Division staff to provide information about the



      3     documents provided to the Commission members,



      4     including the orders issued by the Cass County



      5     Commissioners, the Election Division co-directors,



      6     and notice of this meeting given to the county and



      7     the objector, Ms. Cynthia White.  Unless there is



      8     objection, the documents provided to the Commission



      9     by the Election Division will be entered into the



     10     record of this meeting.



     11          After the Election Division staff completes



     12     its presentation, the challenger, Ms. White, will



     13     be recognized first.  The challenger or challengers



     14     or authorized representative may present their case



     15     for not more than seven minutes, unless the



     16     Commission votes to allow additional time to the



     17     presenter.  Commission members may ask questions



     18     during the presentation, but the time spent



     19     answering those questions will not count against



     20     the seven minutes allocated.  The Election Division



     21     may signal the Chair, myself, when the presenter's



     22     time is up.



     23          If any presenter offers additional documents



     24     or physical evidence not previously received by the



     25     Commission, then the original must be provided to
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      1     the Election Division, and I'd ask that you hand it



      2     to our co-counsel, Valerie Warycha, down here on my



      3     right to preserve for the record.



      4          A representative for Cass County Commissioners



      5     will be recognized following the presentation of



      6     the objector.  The county representative may also



      7     present their case for not more than seven minutes,



      8     unless the Commission votes to allow additional



      9     time for the presenter from Cass County.



     10          Following the presentation by the objector,



     11     the county representatives may cross-examine the



     12     objector.  Following the presentation by the county



     13     representative, the objector may cross-examine the



     14     county representative.  The cross-examination in



     15     all cases will be limited to two minutes, unless



     16     the Commission votes to allow additional time.



     17     Cross-examination must be limited to questions



     18     regarding statements made by either presenter.



     19     Following the presentation by the county



     20     representative, the objector may present a rebuttal



     21     of no more than two minutes.



     22          The Commission may dismiss the cause of any



     23     challenger who has failed to appear and testify



     24     before the Commission.



     25          Is there any objection from the Commission
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      1     members or any individual present to these



      2     procedures?



      3          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  No.



      4          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Hearing none -- do I need a



      5     second?



      6          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  Do you want a motion



      7     to approve instead of just asking if there's an



      8     objection?



      9          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Well, I moved it, so is



     10     there a second?



     11          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  Sorry.  Second.



     12          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  There's a second.  Any



     13     discussion on the proposed?



     14          Hearing none, all those in favor.



     15          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  Aye.



     16          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  Aye.



     17          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



     18          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Aye.



     19          These are the procedures.



     20          We'll now begin with consideration of this



     21     matter.  The Election Division has provided copies



     22     of the documents from Cass County, the Election



     23     Division, and the Office of Census Data and



     24     Legislative Services Agency in this matter, and a



     25     copy of the notice to the president of the Cass
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      1     County Commissioners in this matter is in your



      2     binders.



      3          We now recognize Cynthia White or her



      4     representative to make the first presentation.



      5          MS. WHITE:  May I read my objection?



      6          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  May I ask a question?



      7          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Sure.



      8          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  Is it the same



      9     objection that you filed with us?



     10          MS. WHITE:  Yes, it is.



     11          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  You need to state and



     12     spell your name.



     13          MS. WHITE:  Go ahead and ask your question.



     14          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  I'm sorry.  Yeah.



     15     You need to state and spell your name for the



     16     record.



     17          MS. WHITE:  Oh, excuse me.  My name is Cynthia



     18     White, C-y-n-t-h-i-a, White, W-h-i-t-e.



     19          MR. TRITT:  Yes.  And I'm John Tritt, J-o-h-n,



     20     T-r-i-t-t.



     21          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  Mr. Chairman?



     22          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Sure.  Go ahead.



     23          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  One point of order.



     24     Since we have had this and I have reviewed this and



     25     Suzannah has reviewed it and I'm sure you have, I
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      1     don't know if our other person has had the



      2     opportunity, but I would like to forego reading of



      3     it unless someone here thinks it's necessary.  It's



      4     already made part of the record.



      5          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.  I'm inclined to



      6     agree, with the exception that they seem to have



      7     driven quite a distance to be here.



      8          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  I think she can add



      9     other comments.



     10          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  We're offering them



     11     seven minutes, so --



     12          MS. WHITE:  Honestly, as she pointed out,



     13     what's in my objection, I don't really have



     14     anything else to add to it, if that's acceptable.



     15     If not, I would be glad to go ahead and read it.



     16          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Have you had a chance to



     17     review it?



     18          MS. BECKLEY:  She's welcome to read it, as far



     19     as I'm concerned.



     20          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  You've got your



     21     seven minutes.  Go ahead.



     22          MS. WHITE:  You would like me to go ahead and



     23     read it?



     24          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Sure, if you would like to.



     25          MS. WHITE:  Honestly, what I would prefer to
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      1     do is answer questions, if that's okay.  I don't



      2     have to read it.



      3          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  That's completely fine.



      4          Does anyone have any questions?



      5          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  I have a question.



      6          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Sure.  Go ahead.



      7          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  So I found some stuff



      8     interesting in your complaint that I don't know if



      9     we can necessarily do anything about it, but it's



     10     bothersome.  The proposed ward and county district



     11     boundary changes, you say those were not filed.



     12     How would an everyday citizen go about getting a



     13     copy to review to see what the new boundaries are?



     14          MS. WHITE:  I appreciate that question.  That



     15     is a big part of my problem.  We were supposed to



     16     have ten days, the voters, to review this



     17     information.  Six of those days the county



     18     courthouse was closed, so we only -- and it was



     19     during a major holiday and a pandemic.  I don't



     20     believe that the voters of Cass County were allowed



     21     the amount of time in order to look at those



     22     documents and also -- and to understand them.



     23          I'd like to show you something right here.



     24     This was part of what was available.  There were



     25     seven pages of these numbers.  These are census
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      1     ward numbers.  I had no idea what they were.



      2     They're not labeled.  I don't think that the



      3     average voter would understand what these are, nor



      4     would they have had the time, even if they did



      5     understand them, to --



      6          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Is that a document you



      7     brought with you?



      8          MS. WHITE:  Yes, it is.



      9          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Would you please give the



     10     original to Ms. Warycha.



     11          MS. WHITE:  Sure.  I'll give you all of them,



     12     if that would be helpful.  I think there's even



     13     more of them.  I apologize for not having them all



     14     separated out for you.



     15          MR. TRITT:  There's one precinct with two



     16     active voters listed.



     17          MS. WHITE:  There may be duplicates in there



     18     because John is also going through there, but there



     19     are seven pages total.



     20          MS. WARYCHA:  I'll give these to you all to



     21     review them now.



     22          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  We can just pass them



     23     along.



     24          MR. KING:  And, Mr. Chairman, we'll direct



     25     those to be labeled as Objector's Exhibit No. 1.
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      1          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  So do you want to go



      2     ahead and explain the significance, then, of No. 1



      3     again now that we have a reference number for the



      4     record.



      5          MS. WHITE:  For those?



      6          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  Yes.



      7          MS. WHITE:  As I said, those are census ward



      8     numbers, which I've never heard of before.  I'm



      9     just here for the voters of Cass County.  This is



     10     not something -- these pages, these numbers are not



     11     labeled.  It does not indicate what they are or



     12     what they represent.  And, again, there were only



     13     four days that the public had access to the county



     14     courthouse to even look at these.  I believe it



     15     would probably take a special kind of software in



     16     order to determine exactly what these numbers



     17     meant.  It would take an extremely long time.  As



     18     you saw, there's seven pages, and you can see how



     19     many numbers are on each page.



     20          MR. TRITT:  It begs the question, is it easier



     21     for whom?  This came from the county commissioners,



     22     but it's not easier for the voters, I would



     23     propose.  I'm a voter in Cass County.  It's not



     24     easier for me.



     25          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  Were the maps -- so
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      1     in our binders we've got, I think, what looks like



      2     it's the same documents as are in Exhibit 1, and



      3     then with those, so it looks like for each precinct



      4     there's that list that you've provided and then a



      5     map of the proposed precinct.  When you went to



      6     look at the documents, were you able to see kind of



      7     that list and then also what that translated to in



      8     terms of the proposed precinct boundaries?



      9          MS. WHITE:  Actually, I was out of town



     10     because it was the holiday, and I did not have an



     11     opportunity to actually go to the courthouse on the



     12     days that they were open.  Another voter got access



     13     to those and made copies of them for me.



     14          One of the things that I think is lacking here



     15     as far as the maps go, there's no overlay to show



     16     people what the exact changes are, and I think that



     17     would have made things much easier to understand by



     18     the voters.



     19          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  When did the county



     20     commissioners vote on this?



     21          MS. WHITE:  I don't know.



     22          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  Was there a meeting



     23     noticed where they sent it out and said it's on the



     24     agenda?



     25          MS. WHITE:  Not that I'm aware of, not that
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      1     was made to the public.  It was probably on their



      2     agenda which they had there at the meeting.



      3          MR. TRITT:  I don't see it.



      4          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  So the only way,



      5     though, that the public could get these to look at



      6     them is, number one, they'd get it in the form of



      7     census data and, number two, they'd have to go down



      8     to the seat of county government to be able to get



      9     them?  They weren't available on the Internet or



     10     were they published in the newspaper?



     11          MS. WHITE:  No, just the notice that it was



     12     going -- that they had been proposed, the boundary



     13     changes, and where they could be seen and what



     14     dates they could be seen, the ten-day period, and



     15     that if you had an objection, it had to be filed by



     16     June 3rd -- or January 3rd at noon.



     17          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  So I notice that



     18     they -- I've just been handed documents that on



     19     December 20th they did do a notice of proposed



     20     precinct boundary changes, and they do list the



     21     precincts that were getting the boundary changes.



     22          MS. WHITE:  Do you know where that was posted?



     23          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  Indiana Media Group



     24     in Greensburg.  Oh, what is it?



     25          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  We can address
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      1     questions to the county.  I think some of these are



      2     more appropriate probably to the county.



      3          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  I would agree.



      4          Okay.  So you have the problem with the



      5     notice.



      6          MS. WHITE:  Correct.



      7          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  Now, moving that



      8     issue aside, your next issue?



      9          MS. WHITE:  My next issue is that the newly



     10     proposed precincts for Deer Creek East, West, Eel



     11     North, Eel East, Noble North, Logansport 4,



     12     Washington South may have familiar names, but it's



     13     not easily found by the voters.  And also --



     14          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  Okay.  My question



     15     is:  What do you mean by that?  Because once these



     16     precincts are adopted and everything, you can go



     17     to -- there's various software out there, probably



     18     for the county and for the state, where you type in



     19     your address and it will tell you the precinct and



     20     it will give you the location where you're going to



     21     go vote.



     22          MS. WHITE:  Okay.



     23          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  And if you register



     24     to vote for the first time, the county clerk will



     25     figure out what precinct and everything you belong
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      1     into.



      2          MS. WHITE:  All right.



      3          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  So I did have a



      4     question as to why that was a concern.



      5          MS. WHITE:  Well, the other part of my concern



      6     with those is that I see 3-11-1.5-3.1 states that



      7     precincts may not be established after June 30,



      8     2019, with fewer than 600 active voters.  Some of



      9     these altered precincts only have four voters, six



     10     voters, or 27 voters.



     11          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  And, you know, I too



     12     thought that's ridiculous.  It is ridiculous.  But



     13     I also understand that, the way it's been explained



     14     to me -- and if I'm incorrect, please let me know.



     15     But the way it's been explained to me is, if you



     16     have a precinct with less than 600 voters, you



     17     can't do it unless that precinct crosses, like, a



     18     congressional district line, a township boundary.



     19     Then you can have less than.  And I think the



     20     problem that probably played a role in here in some



     21     part -- and you live there, I don't -- but they



     22     drew new congressional districts which basically



     23     split your county down the middle, which changed



     24     the ball game, so to speak.  So they can't cross



     25     over that.
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      1          So even though you have -- and I don't know



      2     whether you have vote centers there or not, but if



      3     you have -- you do?  Well, that will make it



      4     somewhat easier, but having to keep track of a



      5     precinct with four voters and to deal with that,



      6     and 27 voters, I'm sure the clerk would probably



      7     not want to have to worry about that either, but



      8     those do take the priority.



      9          Now, do you understand the law to be something



     10     different?



     11          MS. WHITE:  Yeah.  I think I understand



     12     exactly what you're saying.



     13          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  Okay.  So I think



     14     that that was the problem.  I mean, I think you're



     15     right.  I think it's ridiculous.  And I do agree



     16     with you on your -- and this is something I will



     17     ask the county about, is that the reason why they



     18     drew new things was to make it easier to draw the



     19     city council districts.  That's not a reason that's



     20     in the statutes either.



     21          MS. WHITE:  Exactly.



     22          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  So we'll find out



     23     what that means.



     24          So let's see here.  You have "Altered precinct



     25     Logansport 1 under 'General Precinct Information'
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      1     does not indicate whether this is a new precinct."



      2          MS. WHITE:  Uh-huh.



      3          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  I think -- was that a



      4     new precinct, Director Nussmeyer?  Oh, no.  I got



      5     it.



      6          MR. TRITT:  This map.



      7          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  Yeah.  They don't --



      8     a new precinct becomes one -- the way the change is



      9     interpreted is, if you move the precinct boundary



     10     line, you're basically drawing a brand-new



     11     precinct.  But when you change the name only, then



     12     that's not a new precinct.  It's just the same



     13     precinct with a different name.  Am I correct?



     14          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  I'm going to recognize



     15     Co-Director King.



     16          MR. KING:  Oh, I'm sorry.  Mr. Chair, members



     17     of the Commission, I was just mentioning that since



     18     the witness presented the map, it would now need to



     19     be provided for the record.



     20          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Would you please provide



     21     that to Valerie Warycha.



     22          MR. TRITT:  Yes.  It appears that wards were



     23     drawn instead of majority population.



     24          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  And for the record, will we



     25     make that Exhibit 2?
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      1          MR. KING:  Yes.



      2          MS. NUSSMEYER:  If I might, Mr. Chairman.



      3          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Please.



      4          MS. NUSSMEYER:  So at least in my view, the



      5     IEC-8 form, which is a form created by both



      6     co-directors of the Election Division which asks



      7     for a number of things from the county, including



      8     which precincts may be impacted by altering



      9     precinct boundaries, what the census blocks are and



     10     how those are -- what census blocks compose, if it



     11     is a split census block, that there's aerial



     12     imagery attached to it, the form itself asks a



     13     number of things that aren't necessarily required



     14     in statute.



     15          The term "new precinct," at least from my



     16     perspective, means there's been some sort of change



     17     to the precinct.  But as I understand from the



     18     Office of Census Data, if the precinct name has not



     19     changed, it is not a new precinct.  They only want



     20     to know if it is a new precinct because it is



     21     wholly new.  So that term, if it's a new precinct,



     22     whether it's marked or not, to me, is not a fatal



     23     flaw with the IEC-8 submission because that's



     24     somewhat subjective, depending on who is completing



     25     the form and their understanding of it.
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      1          MR. KING:  Mr. Chairman, members of the



      2     Commission, I agree entirely with Co-Director



      3     Nussmeyer with regard to the legal requirements of



      4     the IEC-8 and the fact that "new precinct" is



      5     somewhat ambiguous because different entities use



      6     it in different ways.



      7          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Some of this seems to be



      8     spelled out in this memo from the Cass County



      9     clerk; correct?



     10          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  That's the memo,



     11     yeah, that sets forth the rationale.



     12          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah, about how these



     13     changes, including the renaming of some districts



     14     or some precinct boundaries --



     15          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  Right.



     16          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  Have you seen this



     17     memo?  Wait a minute.  Yeah.  Have you been



     18     provided a copy of this memo from the clerk of the



     19     Cass County courts?



     20          MS. WHITE:  I have not.



     21          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  I'm going to give you



     22     a copy of it.  It was apparently -- was it filed on



     23     the 1st?



     24          MS. NUSSMEYER:  That's my understanding, yes.



     25     So the counties have to submit certain
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      1     documentation to the State as part of our review,



      2     along with the Office of Census Data, so they would



      3     have filed it at the time of the initial submission



      4     and worked with their assigned staff person to



      5     perfect the filing until it got to a point where



      6     the co-directors could agree it was in good shape



      7     enough to -- it met the legal requirements to have



      8     published notice.



      9          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Would you reflect in the



     10     record that she handed the memo to Ms. White.



     11          Any other questions?



     12          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  Just a minute,



     13     Mr. Chair.  I started to call you "Your Honor."



     14          MS. WHITE:  I've had a chance to read it.



     15     Thank you.



     16          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  I think we've pretty



     17     much covered it.



     18          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Did you have anything else



     19     you'd like to offer?



     20          MS. WHITE:  I don't think so at this time.



     21          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  Is the complainant



     22     provided time for rebuttal?



     23          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah, as established in the



     24     rules.



     25          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  Yeah.  That's what I
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      1     thought.



      2          So you understand that?



      3          MS. WHITE:  Yes.



      4          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  Once you sit down,



      5     then the county will come forward and speak --



      6          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Well, prior to that, the



      7     county will have an opportunity to cross-examine.



      8          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  Okay, okay.  Yeah,



      9     cross-examine.



     10          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  So you may be asked some



     11     questions.



     12          MS. WHITE:  Okay.



     13          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.  Would members of the



     14     county step forward.  State and spell your names



     15     for the record, please.



     16          MR. STAJDUHAR:  My name is Mike Stajduhar, and



     17     I definitely need to spell that name,



     18     S-t-a-j-d-u-h-a-r.  Cass County commissioner.



     19          MS. RICHEY:  My name is Destry Richey.  It's



     20     D-e-s-t-r-y, last name Richey, R-i-c-h-e-y.  And



     21     I'm the Cass County clerk.



     22          MR. GILSINGER:  My name is C.J. Gilsinger.



     23     It's C.J., and Gilsinger is G-i-l-s-i-n-g-e-r.  And



     24     I'm the IT director for Cass County.



     25          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  So prior to giving us your
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      1     presentation, do you have any cross-examination or



      2     questions for the objectors?



      3          MS. RICHEY:  Did any of you call the Cass



      4     County clerk or the commissioner's office?



      5          MS. WHITE:  None of the three of us did.



      6          MS. RICHEY:  Did any of you send an email to



      7     the commissioner or Cass County clerk's office?



      8          MS. WHITE:  I believe Lita Rouser did.  As I



      9     said, there were several people that were



     10     concerned, and I know Lita had taken it upon



     11     herself to email.



     12          MS. RICHEY:  And Lita is the --



     13          MS. WHITE:  She is the chairman of the Cass



     14     County Democrats.



     15          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Would you mind spelling her



     16     name?



     17          MS. WHITE:  Lita Rouser, L-i-t-a, R-o-u-s-e-r.



     18          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Thank you.



     19          MS. RICHEY:  Did any of you actually come in



     20     to the courthouse to view the documents that we had



     21     in the binder that was made available to the



     22     public?



     23          MS. WHITE:  No.  As I stated earlier, I was



     24     out of town because of the holiday on the days that



     25     the courthouse was open.  I don't know that -- I
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      1     don't know for sure if anybody else was there.



      2          MS. RICHEY:  We only had two people ask



      3     questions and come in to look, and they were



      4     already working in the government building.  I



      5     spent an hour with each one of them explaining



      6     everything, and they did not have any questions



      7     afterwards.



      8          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.  Do you want to just



      9     move into your presentation?



     10          MR. STAJDUHAR:  Yes, yes.  Let's go ahead and



     11     do that.  Thank you for hearing our side of this



     12     matter.  I'd like to mention, first of all, that



     13     not only did we, of course, approve this in a duly



     14     called meeting of the Commission on December 20th,



     15     but we also had discussed this at a prior meeting



     16     of the Commission, I believe, back in either late



     17     September or early October.



     18          I think, as many of you are aware, Cass County



     19     had particularly difficult problems redistricting



     20     because not only were we split between the 2nd and



     21     4th congressional districts, but the lines did not



     22     respect township lines and were extremely



     23     convoluted, which caused us immense problems.  We



     24     tried to make good faith effort to equalize



     25     districts within our council, for example.  That
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      1     resulted in having to shift a precinct from one



      2     council district to another.



      3          There was just a lot of complications.  We



      4     made our best faith effort.  Even with regard to



      5     the county commissioner districts, which we are not



      6     required to equalize because of population, we



      7     actually made a change there to try to make that a



      8     little more equal.  So we made every possible good



      9     faith effort to do the right thing for the county



     10     voters.



     11          I'd like to turn it over now to Destry.



     12          MS. RICHEY:  In regards to some of the



     13     townships, the reason why there's only four or six



     14     or 27 is that they only took one census block out



     15     of the township, and we had to turn that into its



     16     own precinct because of congressional lines.  Now,



     17     where Deer Creek was concerned, they did sort of



     18     divide that one a little bit better but not by



     19     much.  But we've tried to work with what we had.



     20          We also know that the problem was that you



     21     have to have, at maximum, a 10 percent population



     22     discrepancy between your largest council district



     23     and your lowest council district.  Ours was over



     24     20 percent.  So we had to redo the precincts to be



     25     able to get every -- the council districts in
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      1     compliance with that 10 percent.



      2          As Mike stated on the commissioners, we tried



      3     to make -- yes, it has to be condensed and



      4     confined, but we did try to divide as best as we



      5     could by population also.  So we actually took one



      6     whole township out of one of the districts and



      7     stuck it in another district to try and make it as



      8     fair as possible.



      9          MR. STAJDUHAR:  And I believe, with regard to



     10     council districts, I think we got our variation



     11     down to 6 percent.  Am I correct on that?



     12          MS. RICHEY:  It's almost at 10 percent, but,



     13     remember, we had that new housing addition coming



     14     in --



     15          MR. STAJDUHAR:  That's right.



     16          MS. RICHEY:  -- so we made that low one the



     17     housing addition, so once that goes in in one or



     18     two years, we're still in compliance.



     19          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  Just a note.  What we



     20     have been finding here in our commission is that



     21     the public really seems to be -- transparency is



     22     the new buzzword, especially for the political



     23     process.  And so it doesn't matter whether they're



     24     Republicans; it doesn't matter whether they're



     25     Democrats.  They come together in unity on that
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      1     particular issue.



      2          So I can understand the concern.  I mean, I



      3     understand the difficulty you had in putting this



      4     all together because of the change in the



      5     congressional districts.  But I would just say for



      6     the future, as we're finding, if you want to avoid



      7     this kind of thing, if you can put it on your



      8     websites and tell people to go to the website and



      9     just be honest and say we're dealing with this; if



     10     you have a map, put it up there; if you don't have



     11     a map, tell them we don't have a map but this is



     12     what we have.



     13          MS. RICHEY:  I'm going to defer to C.J.  We do



     14     have a GIS on our website that they can look at and



     15     put in their address and --



     16          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  But I'm talking about



     17     the process beforehand.  If you're going to tell



     18     them in the middle of a pandemic over a holiday



     19     that you've got ten days to file a question or



     20     complaint, you need to give them access to it.  I



     21     mean, there are people -- even though the



     22     courthouse would have been open for four of those



     23     ten days, there's still people out there that don't



     24     want to, because they're immunocompromised or



     25     whatever, that do not want to have to go somewhere.
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      1          MS. RICHEY:  And I did -- back in October,



      2     when I sent everything in to the Election



      3     Department -- Commission, I also emailed the county



      4     chairs all those IEC-8s and all the maps and



      5     everything, and I do have the emails to prove it.



      6          I then redid it last week per Lita's -- Lita



      7     Rouser's emails to me, and at 3:00 a.m., I received



      8     the last one.  So I went in early at 6:30 and



      9     scanned it all back in and sent it back out to



     10     everybody so that we could be as transparent,



     11     because I understand that people are scared to come



     12     out, we're in a pandemic.  And we have tried



     13     everything possible that we could to make it as



     14     transparent as possible.  And I would have taken



     15     the time out, Mike would have taken the time out,



     16     C.J. would have taken the time out to talk to



     17     people.  I even gave my cell phone number out.



     18          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  And I note too for the



     19     record in her cross-examination asking if they



     20     reached out, other than the email, which you sound



     21     like you've been quite responsive to, from



     22     Ms. Rouser, there has been nothing.



     23          MS. RICHEY:  Yes, correct.



     24          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  So the maps were done



     25     in October?
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      1          MS. RICHEY:  That's when we submitted all of



      2     the proposals to the Indiana Election Division.  We



      3     actually sent it in October 14th.



      4          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  But after they come



      5     in, they have to be approved by the census group



      6     and they have to be approved by our co-directors.



      7          MS. RICHEY:  Right, right.



      8          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  And then you finally



      9     get the word back that it's okay.



     10          MS. RICHEY:  That it's okay to put it in the



     11     paper.  And we received notice -- I think it was



     12     signed on the 14th by the Election Commission, and



     13     we received it about that time.



     14          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  The 14th of December?



     15          MS. RICHEY:  December.  Sorry.  And then we



     16     had to wait for the weekend.  The commissioners met



     17     on the 20th to sign the order, the ordinance, and



     18     then to give the okay to put it in our paper.  Our



     19     paper requires three days before they'll even put



     20     it in.  So they were going to put it on



     21     December 24th, and our auditor worked some magic



     22     and got it in on December 23rd.



     23          MR. STAJDUHAR:  In summary, we basically, we



     24     believe, made good faith effort not only in terms



     25     of the notification and the procedure, but also in
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      1     terms of the substance.  We did everything



      2     possible, given what I think was a very difficult



      3     situation for Cass County.



      4          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.



      5          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  I'll ask one question



      6     because I said I would, the thing about where the



      7     reason you gave was that it was --



      8          MS. RICHEY:  It was easier.



      9          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  -- easier.



     10          MS. RICHEY:  We worked with Lori, and we're,



     11     like, there's this little-bitty line, and she goes



     12     try to be as precise as possible.  Because we knew



     13     we were going to have to do major reprecincting, we



     14     did reach out to the city because it was going to



     15     affect their wards.  And we knew if we didn't take



     16     care of it all this year, we were going to have to



     17     go back again next year when they redid their wards



     18     and do this all over again.  So we did contact



     19     them, and that's why it says easier to help with



     20     the city wards.



     21          MS. NUSSMEYER:  Mr. Chairman, if I could, just



     22     to help provide a little more context.



     23          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Please.



     24          MS. NUSSMEYER:  The redistricting standards



     25     are different than our reprecincting standards in
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      1     3-11-1.5.  So the county has to look at too when



      2     they need to recertify or redraw their commissioner



      3     and council districts in 2021.  In nearly all



      4     cases, when they draw those districts, they cannot



      5     cross a precinct boundary.



      6          So if they had population issues, the real



      7     option for the county is to bust up the precincts



      8     to create what they need in order to achieve their



      9     equal population, which is a requirement.  When



     10     they're drawing county council districts, it will



     11     be a requirement of municipalities in nearly all



     12     cases but not every.  There's exceptions to the



     13     statute when they redraw next year in 2022 -- well,



     14     this year when they are commanded to also redraw or



     15     recertify those municipal district boundaries.



     16          MR. STAJDUHAR:  So that issue kind of



     17     conflicted with our other goal of trying to reduce



     18     the number of precincts, so it was a balancing act,



     19     and we did the best we could to allow the city some



     20     flexibility and also reduce the number of precincts



     21     in the city.



     22          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Co-Director King.



     23          MR. KING:  Mr. Chairman, members of the



     24     Commission, I concur entirely with Co-Director



     25     Nussmeyer's description of the various processes
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      1     involved here.  It is one that involves several



      2     moving parts and different levels of government,



      3     and so it's extremely complicated to achieve all of



      4     the steps necessary to comply with each of the



      5     constitutional or statutory requirements.



      6          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Seems like a little bit of



      7     gymnastics.



      8          MR. STAJDUHAR:  Surely.



      9          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Anything else?  Any other



     10     questions?



     11          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  Thank you for being



     12     so forthright.



     13          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  You have an opportunity to



     14     cross-examine, if you'd like it.



     15          MS. WHITE:  I really don't have any



     16     cross-examination.  I do have a question, though.



     17     Is there a way, if the situation -- this type



     18     situation comes up, is there not a way that those



     19     ten days could have been extended because of the



     20     holiday to allow for that?



     21          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Well, I think in terms of



     22     our procedures here, you're really limited to ask



     23     them questions about comments they made on the



     24     record in terms of the presentation, so I'll have



     25     to limit you to that.
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      1          MS. WHITE:  Okay.



      2          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  Mr. Chair, if I may



      3     say something.



      4          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Sure.



      5          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  That ten days is



      6     prescribed by statute, so we cannot change the



      7     statute.  That's up to the legislature.  It does



      8     seem odd that they put that ten days to run



      9     including Christmas and New Year's in that, but



     10     they did.



     11          MS. WHITE:  Correct.  Thank you.



     12          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  And then in addition to your



     13     cross-examination, if you'd like a rebuttal to



     14     anything that was said, you're offered that for



     15     two minutes.



     16          Thank you.



     17          MS. RICHEY:  Thank you.



     18          MS. WHITE:  I think I've stated everything



     19     that I had -- I felt needed to be addressed.



     20          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Well, I'm going to close the



     21     hearing on this matter at this point in time.  And



     22     for purposes of discussion, I move that the



     23     objection filed in this matter be denied and that



     24     the Commission adopt Order 2022-7 to approve the



     25     Cass County precinct establishment order.
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      1          Is there a second?



      2          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  Second.



      3          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Any further discussion?



      4          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  I just want to say



      5     thank you for taking the time out to read the maps,



      6     and thank you for deciding to participate in the



      7     process.  You know, I mean, it's good the county



      8     got to explain it.  You can go back now and tell



      9     people there what the problems were.  They



     10     obviously were operating under an onerous time.



     11     The legislature split your county, and then you had



     12     census data running late and everything else.  So,



     13     you know, it was just the perfect storm, so to



     14     speak.



     15          MS. WHITE:  Yeah.  Well, I appreciate you



     16     listening to what I had to say, and I also



     17     appreciate everything that the commissioners -- all



     18     the hoops you had to jump through.



     19          MR. STAJDUHAR:  Thank you.



     20          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Anything else under



     21     discussion?



     22          So we have a motion and a second to approve



     23     2022-7.  Hearing no further discussion, all those



     24     in favor signify by saying "Aye."



     25          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  Aye.
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      1          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  Aye.



      2          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



      3          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  The "ayes" have it.  The



      4     motion carries.



      5          By consent, can we use signature stamps for



      6     the orders?



      7          MR. KING:  For both orders.



      8          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  For both orders.



      9          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  Yes, consent.



     10          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  Consent.



     11          MS. BECKLEY:  Consent.



     12          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  With that, I believe we've



     13     finished our business for the day.  I'll take a



     14     motion to adjourn.



     15          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  So moved.



     16          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Second?



     17          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  Second.



     18          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  All those in favor.



     19          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  Aye.



     20          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  Aye.



     21          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



     22          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Thank you.



     23          (The Indiana Election Commission Public



     24     Session was adjourned at 2:09 p.m.)



     25
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      1  STATE OF INDIANA



      2  COUNTY OF HAMILTON



      3          I, Maria W. Collier, a Notary Public in and



      4  for said county and state, do hereby certify that the



      5  foregoing public session was taken at the time and



      6  place heretofore mentioned between 1:30 p.m. and



      7  2:09 p.m.;



      8          That said public session was taken down in



      9  stenograph notes and afterwards reduced to typewriting



     10  under my direction; and that the typewritten



     11  transcript is a true record of the public session.



     12          IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my



     13  hand and affixed my notarial seal this 12th day of



     14  January, 2022.



     15
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     21  My Commission expires:

         December 5, 2024
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23 23 MR KING M. Chairman, nenbers of the
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19 Commission. The Commission has received a request |19 proactive and if it cane in at the last ninute,
20 fromthe co-directors for the Coormssion to conduct |20 that it would be ready. So voters of Lake Gounty
21  a hearing today under |ndiana Code 3-11-1.5-18 to 21 have been notified of our changes, and we woul d
22 consider the approval of county precinct 22 request approval .
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1 Legislative Services Agency, and been found to be 1 asecond. Hearing nothing further, all those in
2 inconpliance with state law, but for which the 2 favor signify by saying "Aye."
3 county was unable to provide sufficient tine for 3 VI CE CHA RVAN OVERHOLT:  Aye.
4 publication of legal notice of these proposed 4 MB. CELESTI NO HCRSEMAN  Aye.
5 changes so that a voter of the county woul d have 5 M. BECKLEY: Aye.
6 theright tofile an objection to the proposed 6 CHAl RVAN CKESON  Aye.
7 changes and request a hearing by the Conmi ssion 7 The "ayes" have it. The notion carries.
8 regarding the matter. 8 Thank you.
9 | understand that there are representatives of | 9 MB. FAIMNN  Thank you very much.
10 Lake County present for the neeting today. Any of |10 M5. ANGERVAN  Thank you very much for your
11 those who woul d like to speak on behal f of Lake 11  tine.
12 County, please step forward. 12 CHAl RVAN CKESON Appreci ate you comng al |
13 As we consider any conversation or testinony, |13 this way to be with us.
14  we'll first look at the proposed order, which is 14 M5. ANGERVAN  Happy to do so.
15 2022-6. 1Is there a notion to approve the order? 15 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Next itemon the agenda,
16 VI CE CHAl RVAN OVERHOLT:  So noved. 16  yesterday an objection to proposed precinct
17 CHAI RMAN CKESON  |'s there a second? 17  establishment orders fromCass County was filed
18 MB. BECKLEY:  Second. 18 with the Indiana Hection Division. A copy of the
19 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Having a notion and a 19  objection, which consists of two docunents, is
20 second, we'll now proceed to any testinony. 20 included in our binder under the Cass County tab.
21 G ahead. State your nanme for the record. 21 Bef ore proceeding, | nove the Cormission adopt
22 MB. ANGERVAN  LeAnn Angernan. |'mthe 22 the follow ng procedures for consideration of the
23 assistant director for Lake County Board of 23 matter, which are based on the procedures we've
24 Hections and Registration. 24 used for conducting candidate chal | enge hearings
25 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Can you spel | your name for |25  previously.
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1 The hearing will begin by recognizing HBection| 1 nenbers or any individual present to these
2 Division staff to provide information about the 2 procedures?
3 docurents provided to the Conm ssion nenbers, 3 VI CE GHA RVAN OVERHOLT:  No.
4 including the orders issued by the Cass County 4 CHAI RMAN CKESCN Hearing none -- do | need a
5 Commssioners, the Hection Division co-directors, 5 second?
6 and notice of this meeting given to the county and 6 VI CE CHA RVAN OVERHOLT: Do you want a notion
7 the objector, M. Cynthia Wiite. Unless thereis 7 to approve instead of just asking if there's an
8 objection, the documents provided to the Cormission | 8 objection?
9 by the Hection Division will be entered into the 9 CHAIRVAN CKESCN Vel I, | noved it, sois
10 record of this neeting. 10 there a second?
11 After the Bection Dvision staff conpletes 11 VI CE CHA RVAN OVERHOLT:  Sorry.  Second.
12 its presentation, the challenger, M. Wite, will 12 CHAI RVAN CKESCN There's a second.  Any
13 be recogni zed first. The chall enger or challengers | 13  discussion on the proposed?
14 or authorized representative may present their case | 14 Hearing none, all those in favor.
15 for not nore than seven ninutes, unless the 15 VI CE CHA RVAN OVERHOLT:  Aye.
16 Commission votes to allow additional time to the 16 MB. CELESTI NGO HCRSEMAN  Aye.
17 presenter. Commission nenbers may ask questions 17 M. BECKLEY: Aye.
18 during the presentation, but the time spent 18 CHAI RVAN CKESON Aye.
19 answering those questions will not count against 19 These are the procedures.
20 the seven nminutes allocated. The Hection Division |20 V' Il now begin with consideration of this
21 nmay signal the Chair, nyself, when the presenter's |21 natter. The Hection D vision has provided copies
22 timeis up. 22 of the docunents from Cass County, the Hection
23 If any presenter offers additional docunents 23 Dvision, and the (fice of Census Data and
24 or physical evidence not previously received by the |24 Legislative Services Agency in this matter, and a
25 Commission, then the original nmust be provided to 25 copy of the notice to the president of the Cass
Page 10 Page 12
1 the Hection Dvision, and I1'd ask that you hand it | 1 County Conmissioners in this natter is in your
2 to our co-counsel, Valerie Wrycha, down here on ny | 2 binders.
3 right to preserve for the record. 3 & now recogni ze Cynthia Wite or her
4 A representative for Cass County Conmissioners | 4 representative to nake the first presentation.
5 wll be recognized following the presentation of 5 M. VHTE My | read ny objection?
6 the objector. The county representative nay al so 6 M5. CELESTINO HORSEMAN  May | ask a question?
7 present their case for not nore than seven minutes, | 7 CHA RVAN CKESON  Sure.
8 unless the Conmission votes to al | ow additional 8 MB. CELESTINO HCRSEMAN  Is it the sane
9 time for the presenter fromCass Gounty. 9 objection that you filed with us?
10 Fol | owi ng the presentation by the objector, 10 M. WVHTE Yes, it is.
11  the county representatives nmay cross-examne the 11 VI CE CHA RVAN OVERHOLT:  You need to state and
12 objector. Follow ng the presentation by the county |12 spell your nane.
13  representative, the objector may cross-examne the |13 M. WVHTE o ahead and ask your questi on.
14 county representative. The cross-examnation in 14 MB. CELESTINO HORSEMAN  |'msorry.  Yeah.
15 all cases will be limted to two nminutes, unless 15  You need to state and spell your nane for the
16 the Cormission votes to allow additional tine. 16  record.
17  (oss-examnation nust be limted to questions 17 M. VHTE (h, excuse ne. M name is Qynthia
18 regarding statenents nade by either presenter. 18 Wite, Gy-n-t-h-i-a, Wite, Wh-i-t-e.
19 Followi ng the presentation by the county 19 MR TRTT: Yes. And I'mJohn Tritt, J-o-h-n,
20 representative, the objector may present a rebuttal |20 T-r-i-t-t.
21 of no nore than two minutes. 21 MB. CELESTI NG HORSEMAN M. Chai r man?
22 The Commi ssion nay di smss the cause of any 22 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Sure. G ahead.
23 challenger who has failed to appear and testify 23 MB. CELESTI NO HORSEMAN  (ne point of order.
24 Dbefore the Cormission. 24 Since we have had this and | have reviewed this and
25 I's there any objection fromthe GComission 25 Suzannah has reviewed it and I'msure you have, |
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1 don't knowif our other person has had the 1 ward nunbers. | had no idea what they were.
2 opportunity, but | would like to forego reading of 2 They're not |abeled. | don't think that the
3 it unless soneone here thinks it's necessary. It's | 3 average voter woul d understand what these are, nor
4 already nmade part of the record. 4 would they have had the tine, even if they did
5 CHAl RVAN CKESON Yeah. |'minclined to 5 understand them to --
6 agree, with the exception that they seemto have 6 CHAI RVAN CKESCN |I's that a docurent you
7 driven quite a distance to be here. 7 brought with you?
8 MB. CELESTINO-HCRSEMAN | think she can add 8 M. WVHTE Yes, it is.
9 other comments. 9 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Woul d you pl ease give the
10 CHAI RMAN CKESON Wé're of fering them 10 original to M. Vérycha.
11 seven ninutes, SO -- 11 M. WVHTE Sure. I'Il give you all of them
12 M. VHTE Honestly, as she pointed out, 12 if that would be helpful. | think there's even
13 what's in ny objection, | don't really have 13 nore of them | apol ogize for not having themall
14 anything else to add to it, if that's acceptabl e. 14  separated out for you.
15 If not, | would be glad to go ahead and read it. 15 MR TRTT. There's one precinct with two
16 CHAI RVAN CKESON Have you had a chance to 16 active voters |isted.
17 reviewit? 17 M. WVHTE There nay be duplicates in there
18 M. BECKLEY: She's welcone to read it, as far |18 because John is also going through there, but there
19 as |' mconcerned. 19 are seven pages total.
20 CHA RVAN CKESON You' ve got  your 20 MB. WARYCHA:  |'Il give these to you all to
21  seven mnutes. & ahead. 21 revi ew t hem now,
22 M. WVHTE You would like ne to go ahead and |22 VI CE CHAl RVAN OVERHOLT: ¢ can just pass them
23 read it? 23 along.
24 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Sure, if you woul d like to. 24 MR KING And, M. Chairman, we'll direct
25 M. VHTE Honestly, what | woul d prefer to 25 those to be | abeled as (hjector's Exhibit No. 1.
Page 14 Page 16
1 dois answer questions, if that's okay. | don't 1 MB. CELESTI NO HORSEMAN  So do you want to go
2 have toread it. 2 ahead and explain the significance, then, of No. 1
3 CHAI RVAN CKESCN That''s conpl etel y fine. 3 again nowthat we have a reference nunber for the
4 Does anyone have any questions? 4 record.
5 M5. CELESTINO HORSEMAN | have a questi on. 5 M5. VHTE For those?
6 CHA RVAN CKESON Sure. G ahead. 6 MB. CELESTI NO HORSEMAN  Yes.
7 MB. CELESTING HCRSEMAN  So | found sonme stuff | 7 M. WVHTE As | said, those are census ward
8 interesting in your conplaint that | don't knowif 8 nunbers, which I've never heard of before. |'m
9 we can necessarily do anything about it, but it's 9 just here for the voters of Cass County. This is
10  bothersome. The proposed ward and county district |10 not sonething -- these pages, these nunbers are not
11  boundary changes, you say those were not filed. 11 labeled. It does not indicate what they are or
12 Howwoul d an everyday citizen go about getting a 12 what they represent. And, again, there were only
13 copy to review to see what the new boundaries are? |13 four days that the public had access to the county
14 M. WVHTE | appreciate that question. That |14 courthouse to even look at these. | believe it
15 is abig part of ny problem W were supposed to 15  would probably take a special kind of software in
16  have ten days, the voters, to reviewthis 16 order to determne exactly what these nunbers
17 information. Sx of those days the county 17 meant. It would take an extrenely long time. As
18 courthouse was closed, so we only -- and it was 18 you saw, there's seven pages, and you can see how
19 during a major holiday and a pandemc. | don't 19 many nunbers are on each page.
20 believe that the voters of Cass County were all owed | 20 MR TRTT: It begs the question, is it easier
21 the anount of tine in order to | ook at those 21 for whon? This came fromthe county conmissioners,
22 docunents and al so -- and to understand them 22 but it's not easier for the voters, | would
23 I'"d like to show you sonething right here. 23 propose. |'ma voter in Cass County. |It's not
24 This was part of what was available. There were 24  easier for ne.
25 seven pages of these nunbers. These are census 25 VI CE CGHA RVAN OVERHOLT:  Wére the maps -- so
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1 inour binders we've got, | think, what |ooks Iike 1 questions to the county. | think some of these are

2 it's the sane docunents as are in Exhibit 1, and 2 nore appropriate probably to the county.

3 thenwith those, so it looks |ike for each precinct | 3 MB. CELESTI NO HORSEMAN | woul d agree.

4 there's that list that you' ve provided and then a 4 (kay. So you have the problemwith the

5 map of the proposed precinct. Wen you went to 5 notice.

6 look at the docurments, were you able to see kind of | 6 MS. WHTE Correct.

7 that list and then also what that translated to in 7 MB. CELESTI NO HORSEMAN  Now, novi ng t hat

8 ternms of the proposed precinct boundaries? 8 issue aside, your next issue?

9 M. VHTE Actually, | was out of town 9 M. VHTE M next issue is that the newy

10 because it was the holiday, and | did not have an 10 proposed precincts for Deer (reek East, Vést, Eel

11  opportunity to actually go to the courthouse on the | 11  North, Eel East, Noble North, Logansport 4,

12 days that they were open. Another voter got access |12  \éshington South may have famliar nanes, but it's

13 to those and nade copies of themfor ne. 13 not easily found by the voters. And also --

14 (ne of the things that | think is lacking here | 14 M5. CELESTINO HORSEMAN  Ckay. M question

15 as far as the maps go, there's no overlay to show |15 is: Wat do you nean by that? Because once these

16  peopl e what the exact changes are, and | think that |16 precincts are adopted and everything, you can go

17 woul d have nmade things nuch easier to understand by |17 to -- there's various software out there, probably

18 the voters. 18 for the county and for the state, where you type in

19 MB. CELESTI NO HORSEMAN  Whien did the county 19 your address and it will tell you the precinct and

20  commissioners vote on this? 20 it will give you the |ocation where you' re going to

21 M. VHTE | don't know. 21 go vote.

22 MB. CELESTI NO HORSEMAN Vs there a neeting 22 M. VHTE  Ckay.

23 noticed where they sent it out and said it's on the | 23 MB. CELESTING HCRSEMAN  And if you register

24 agenda? 24 tovote for the first time, the county clerk will

25 M. VHTE Not that |'maware of, not that 25 figure out what precinct and everything you bel ong
Page 18 Page 20

1 was nade to the public. It was probably on their 1 into.

2 agenda which they had there at the neeting. 2 M. VHTE Al right.

3 M TRTT: | don't seeit. 3 M. CELESTINO HCRSEMAN  So | did have a

4 MB. CELESTINO HCRSEMAN  So the only way, 4 question as to why that was a concern.

5 though, that the public could get these to | ook at 5 M. VHTE Weéll, the other part of ny concern

6 themis, nunber one, they'd get it in the form of 6 wththoseis that | see 3-11-1.5-3.1 states that

7 census data and, nunber two, they'd have to go down | 7 precincts may not be established after June 30,

8 to the seat of county governnent to be able to get 8 2019, with fewer than 600 active voters. Sone of

9 then? They weren't available on the Internet or 9 these altered precincts only have four voters, six

10 were they published in the newspaper? 10 voters, or 27 voters.

11 M. VHTE No, just the notice that it was 11 M5. CELESTI NO HORSEMAN  And, you know, | too

12 going -- that they had been proposed, the boundary |12 thought that's ridiculous. It is ridiculous. But

13 changes, and where they could be seen and what 13 | also understand that, the way it's been expl ai ned

14 dates they coul d be seen, the ten-day period, and 14 tone-- andif I'mincorrect, please |et me know

15 that if you had an objection, it had to be filed by |15 But the way it's been explained to neis, if you

16 June 3rd -- or January 3rd at noon. 16  have a precinct with |ess than 600 voters, you

17 MS. CELESTINO HORSEMAN  So | notice that 17 can't do it unless that precinct crosses, like, a

18 they -- I've just been handed docunents that on 18 congressional district line, a township boundary.

19  Decenber 20th they did do a notice of proposed 19  Then you can have less than. And | think the

20 precinct boundary changes, and they do list the 20 problemthat probably played a role in here in some

21 precincts that were getting the boundary changes. 21 part -- and you live there, | don't -- but they

22 M. VHTE Do you know where that was posted? | 22  drew new congressi onal districts which basically

23 MB. CELESTI NO HORSEMAN | ndi ana Media G oup 23 split your county down the mddle, which changed

24 in QGeensburg. Ch, what isit? 24 the ball gane, so to speak. So they can't cross

25 VI CE GHA RVAN OVERHOLT: V¢ can address 25 over that.
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1 So even though you have -- and | don't know 1 MR KING Yes.
2 whether you have vote centers there or not, but if 2 MB. NUSSMEYER If | nmight, M. Chairnan.
3 you have -- you do? Wéll, that will nmake it 3 CHAI RMAN CKESON P ease.
4 somewhat easier, but having to keep track of a 4 MB. NUSSMEYER So at least in ny view the
5 precinct with four voters and to deal with that, 5 IEG8 form whichis aformcreated by both
6 and 27 voters, I'msure the clerk woul d probably 6 co-directors of the Hection Division which asks
7 not want to have to worry about that either, but 7 for a nunber of things fromthe county, including
8 those do take the priority. 8 which precincts may be inpacted by altering
9 Now, do you understand the lawto be sonething | 9 precinct boundaries, what the census bl ocks are and
10 different? 10 howthose are -- what census bl ocks conpose, if it
11 M. WVHTE Yeah. | think | understand 11 is asplit census block, that there's aerial
12 exactly what you're saying. 12 inagery attached to it, the formitself asks a
13 MB. CELESTING HCRSEMAN  Ckay. So | think 13 nunber of things that aren't necessarily required
14 that that was the problem | nean, | think you're |14 in statute.
15 right. | thinkit's ridiculous. And | do agree 15 The term"new precinct," at |east fromny
16 wth you on your -- and this is sonething | will 16  perspective, neans there's been sone sort of change
17 ask the county about, is that the reason why they 17 to the precinct. But as | understand fromthe
18 drewnew things was to make it easier to draw the 18 Ofice of Census Data, if the precinct name has not
19 city council districts. That's not a reason that's |19 changed, it is not a new precinct. They only want
20 inthe statutes either. 20 toknowif it is a newprecinct because it is
21 M. WVHTE Exactly. 21  wholly new So that term if it's a new precinct,
22 MB. CELESTINO HCRSEMAN  So we'll find out 22 whether it's marked or not, to me, is not a fatal
23 what that neans. 23 flawwth the | EG8 subm ssion because that's
24 So let's see here. You have "Altered precinct |24  sonmewhat subjective, depending on who is conpleting
25 Logansport 1 under 'General Precinct |nformation' 25 the formand their understanding of it.
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1 does not indicate whether this is a new precinct." 1 MR KING M. Chairman, nenbers of the
2 M. VHTE  Unh-huh. 2 Commission, | agree entirely with Go-Drector
3 M. CELESTINO HORSEMAN | think -- was that a | 3 Nussneyer with regard to the | egal requirenents of
4  newprecinct, Drector Nussmeyer? Ch, no. | got 4 the IEG8 and the fact that "new precinct” is
5 it. 5 sonewhat anbi guous because different entities use
6 MR TRTT:. This nap. 6 it indifferent ways.
7 MB. CELESTINO HCRSEMAN  Yeah. They don't -- 7 CHA RVAN CKESON Sone of this seens to be
8 a new precinct becones one -- the way the change is | 8 spelled out inthis menmo fromthe Cass County
9 interpreted is, if you nove the precinct boundary 9 clerk; correct?
10 line, you' re basically draw ng a brand- new 10 VI CE CHA RVAN OVERHQLT:  That's the neno,
11 precinct. But when you change the nane only, then |11 yeah, that sets forth the rational e.
12 that's not a newprecinct. It's just the sane 12 CHA RVAN CKESON Yeah, about how t hese
13 precinct with a different nane. Aml correct? 13 changes, including the renamng of sone districts
14 CHAl RVAN CKESON 1" mgoing to recogni ze 14 or some precinct boundaries --
15 (o-Drector King. 15 VI CE CHAl RVAN OVERHOLT:  Right.
16 M KING Oh, I'msorry. M. Chair, nenbers |16 MB. CELESTI NO HORSEMAN  Have you seen this
17 of the Commssion, | was just nentioning that since |17 nenp? Wit a mnute. Yeah. Have you been
18 the witness presented the map, it would now need to | 18 provided a copy of this nemo fromthe clerk of the
19  be provided for the record. 19 Cass County courts?
20 CHAI RVAN CKESCN Woul d you pl ease provi de 20 M. VHTE | have not.
21 that to Valerie Vérycha. 21 MB. CELESTI NO HORSEMAN  |' mgoing to give you
22 MR TRTT: Yes. It appears that wards were 22 acopy of it. It was apparently -- was it filed on
23 drawn instead of najority popul ation. 23 the 1st?
24 CHAI RVAN CKESCN And for the record, will we |24 MB. NUSSMEYER That's ny understanding, yes.
25 nake that Exhibit 2? 25 So the counties have to submt certain






Pages 25..28

Page 25

Page 27

1 docunentation to the State as part of our review 1 presentation, do you have any cross-exanination or

2 along with the Ofice of Census Data, so they would | 2 questions for the objectors?

3 have filed it at the tinme of the initial submssion| 3 MB. RCGEY: Didany of you call the Cass

4 and worked with their assigned staff person to 4 (Qounty clerk or the cormissioner's office?

5 perfect the filing until it got to a point where 5 M. VHTE None of the three of us did.

6 the co-directors could agree it was in good shape 6 M. RCGEY: Didany of you send an enail to

7 enough to -- it met the legal requirenents to have 7 the commissioner or Cass County clerk's office?

8 published notice. 8 M. WVHTE | believe Lita Rouser did. As |

9 CHA RVAN CKESON - Woul d you reflect in the 9 said, there were several people that were

10 record that she handed the neno to Ms. Wite. 10 concerned, and | know Lita had taken it upon

11 Any ot her questions? 11  herself to email.

12 MS. CELESTI NO HORSEMAN  Just a m nute, 12 M5. RCHEY: And Litais the --

13 M. Chair. | started to call you "Your Honor." 13 M. WHTE She is the chairman of the Cass

14 M. VHTE |'ve had a chance to read it. 14 County Denocrats.

15  Thank you. 15 CHA RVAN CKESON Wul d you mind spel |ing her

16 MB. CELESTING HCRSEMAN | think we've pretty |16 nane?

17 nuch covered it. 17 M. VHTE Lita Rouser, L-i-t-a, RoO-u-s-e-r.

18 CHAl RVAN CKESON Di d you have anything el se 18 CHAl RVAN CKESON Thank  you.

19 you'd like to offer? 19 MB. RCGEY: Didany of you actually cone in

20 M. VHTE | don't think so at this tine. 20 to the courthouse to view the docunents that we had

21 MB. CELESTI NO HORSEMAN  |'s the conpl ai nant 21 in the binder that was nade available to the

22 provided tinme for rebuttal ? 22 public?

23 CHAl RVAN CKESON  Yeah, as established in the |23 M. WVHTE No. As | stated earlier, | was

24 rules. 24 out of town because of the holiday on the days that

25 M. CELESTINO HORSEMAN  Yeah. That's what | |25 the courthouse was open. | don't knowthat -- |
Page 26 Page 28

1 thought. 1 don't know for sure if anybody el se was there.

2 So you understand that ? 2 MB. RCGEY: Ve only had two peopl e ask

3 M. WVHTE  Yes. 3 questions and cone in to | ook, and they were

4 MB. CELESTINO HCRSEMAN  (nce you sit down, 4 already working in the governnent building. |

5 then the county will cone forward and speak -- 5 spent an hour with each one of themexplaining

6 CHAI RVAN CKESON Vel |, prior to that, the 6 everything, and they did not have any questions

7 county wll have an opportunity to cross-exanine. 7 afterwards.

8 MB. CELESTI NO HORSEMAN  Ckay, okay. Yeah, 8 CHAI RVMAN CKESON Ckay. Do you want to just

9  cross-exanine. 9 nove into your presentation?

10 CHAI RVAN CKESON So you nay be asked sone 10 MR STAJDIHAR  Yes, yes. Let's go ahead and

11 questions. 11 do that. Thank you for hearing our side of this

12 M. WVHTE Ckay. 12 matter. 1'd like to nention, first of all, that

13 CHA RVAN CKESON Ckay.  Wul d nenbers of the |13 not only did we, of course, approve this in a duly

14 county step forward. State and spell your names 14 called neeting of the Comm ssion on Decenber 20th,

15 for the record, please. 15 but we also had discussed this at a prior meeting

16 MR STAJDBHAR M nane is Mke Stajduhar, and |16 of the Cormission, | believe, back in either late

17 | definitely need to spell that nane, 17  Septenber or early Qctober.

18 St-a-j-d-u-h-a-r. Cass County conmissioner. 18 | think, as many of you are aware, Cass County

19 M. RCGHEY: M nane is Destry Richey. It's 19 had particularly difficult problens redistricting

200 De-s-t-r-y, last name Rchey, Ri-c-h-e-y. And 20 because not only were we split between the 2nd and

21 I'mthe Cass County clerk. 21 4th congressional districts, but the lines did not

22 MR GLINER M nane is CJ. GIsinger. 22 respect township lines and were extrenely

23 It's CJ., and Glsinger is Gi-l-s-i-n-g-e-r. And |23 convol uted, which caused us inmmense probl ens. W

24 I'mthe IT director for Cass County. 24 tried to nmake good faith effort to equalize

25 CHAI RVAN CKESCN So prior to giving us your 25 districts within our council, for exanple. That
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1 resulted in having to shift a precinct fromone 1 particular issue.
2 council district to another. 2 So | can understand the concern. | nean, |
3 There was just a lot of conplications. Ve 3 understand the difficulty you had in putting this
4 nade our best faith effort. Even with regard to 4 all together because of the change in the
5 the county comm ssioner districts, which we are not | 5 congressional districts. But | would just say for
6 required to equalize because of popul ation, we 6 the future, as we're finding, if you want to avoid
7 actually nade a change there to try to nake that a 7 this kind of thing, if you can put it on your
8 little nore equal. So we made every possibl e good 8 websites and tell people to go to the website and
9 faith effort to do the right thing for the county 9 just be honest and say we're dealing with this; if
10 voters. 10 you have a map, put it up there; if you don't have
11 I'd like to turn it over nowto Destry. 11 a nap, tell themwe don't have a map but thisis
12 M. RCGEY: Inregards to sone of the 12 what we have.
13 townships, the reason why there's only four or six |13 MB. RCGHEY: ['mgoing to defer to CJ. W do
14 or 27 is that they only took one census bl ock out 14 have a @S on our website that they can | ook at and
15 of the township, and we had to turn that intoits 15 put in their address and --
16  own precinct because of congressional lines. MNow |16 MB. CELESTING HCRSEMAN  But |'mtal ki ng about
17  where Deer (reek was concerned, they did sort of 17 the process beforehand. |If you're going to tell
18 divide that one a little bit better but not by 18 themin the niddl e of a pandenic over a holiday
19 much. But we've tried to work with what we had. 19 that you've got ten days to file a question or
20 W& al so know that the probl emwas that you 20 conplaint, you need to give themaccess toit. |
21  have to have, at maxinum a 10 percent popul ation 21 nean, there are people -- even though the
22  discrepancy between your largest council district 22 courthouse woul d have been open for four of those
23 and your |owest council district. Qurs was over 23 ten days, there's still people out there that don't
24 20 percent. So we had to redo the precincts to be |24 want to, because they're i mmunoconprom sed or
25 able to get every -- the council districts in 25 whatever, that do not want to have to go somewhere.
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1 conpliance with that 10 percent. 1 M. RGEY: And | did -- back in Cctober,
2 As Mke stated on the commssioners, we tried 2 when | sent everything into the Hection
3 tomake -- yes, it has to be condensed and 3 Departnent -- Conmission, | also enailed the county
4 confined, but we did try to divide as best as we 4 chairs all those IEG8s and all the maps and
5 could by population also. So we actually took one 5 everything, and | do have the emails to prove it.
6 whole township out of one of the districts and 6 | thenredidit last week per Lita's -- Lita
7 stuck it in another district totry and nake it as 7 PRouser's emails tone, and at 3:00 a.m, | received
8 fair as possible. 8 thelast one. So |l went inearly at 6:30 and
9 MR STAJDUHAR And | believe, with regard to 9 scanned it all back in and sent it back out to
10 council districts, | think we got our variation 10 everybody so that we could be as transparent,
11  down to 6 percent. Aml correct on that? 11  because | understand that people are scared to cone
12 M. RGEY: It's alnost at 10 percent, but, 12 out, we're in a pandemc. And we have tried
13 renenber, we had that new housing addition com ng 13 everything possible that we could to nake it as
14 in -- 14 transparent as possible. And | would have taken
15 MR STAJDIHAR That's right. 15 the tine out, Mke woul d have taken the tine out,
16 MB. RCGHEY: -- so we rmade that |ow one the 16 CJ. would have taken the tinme out to talk to
17  housing addition, so once that goes in in one or 17 people. | even gave ny cell phone nunber out.
18 two years, we're still in conpliance. 18 CHAI RVAN CKESCN And | note too for the
19 MB. CELESTINO HORSEMAN  Just a note. Wiat we |19 record in her cross-examnation asking if they
20 have been finding here in our commission is that 20 reached out, other than the email, which you sound
21 the public really seens to be -- transparency is 21 like you' ve been quite responsive to, from
22  the new buzzword, especially for the political 22 M. Rouser, there has been not hing.
23 process. And so it doesn't nmatter whether they're |23 MB. RGHEY: Yes, correct.
24 Republicans; it doesn't natter whether they're 24 MB. CELESTI NO HORSEMAN  So the maps were done
25 Denocrats. They cone together in unity on that 25 in Cctober?
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1 MB. RCHEY: That's when we submtted all of 1 3-11-1.5. So the county has to |ook at too when

2 the proposals to the Indiana Bection Division. W 2 they need to recertify or redraw their conmi ssioner

3 actually sent it in Cctober 14th. 3 and council districts in 2021. In nearly all

4 MB. CELESTI NO HORSEMAN  But after they come 4  cases, when they draw those districts, they cannot

5 in, they have to be approved by the census group 5 cross a precinct boundary.

6 and they have to be approved by our co-directors. 6 So if they had popul ation issues, the real

7 MS. RCEY: Rght, right. 7 option for the county is to bust up the precincts

8 M. CELESTI NG HORSEMAN  And then you finally 8 to create what they need in order to achieve their

9 get the word back that it's okay. 9 equal population, which is a requirenment. Wen

10 MB. RCEY: That it's okay to put it inthe 10 they're drawi ng county council districts, it wll

11 paper. And we received notice -- | think it was 11 be a requirement of nunicipalities in nearly all

12 signed on the 14th by the Hection Commission, and 12 cases but not every. There's exceptions to the

13 we received it about that tine. 13 statute when they redraw next year in 2022 -- well,

14 CHA RVAN CKESONN The 14t h of Decenber ? 14  this year when they are commanded to al so redraw or

15 MB. R GHEY: Decenber. Sorry. And then we 15 recertify those nunicipal district boundaries.

16 had to wait for the weekend. The conmissioners net |16 MR STAJDUHAR:  So that issue kind of

17 on the 20th to si gn t he order, the ordi nance, and 17 conflicted with our other goal of trying to reduce

18 then to give the okay to put it in our paper. Qur 18 the number of precincts, so it was a bal ancing act,

19 paper requires three days before they' Il even put 19 and we did the best we could to allow the city sone

20 it in. Sothey Ver e going to put it on 20 flexibility and al so reduce the nunber of precincts

21  Decenber 24th, and our auditor worked sone nagic 21 inthe city.

22 and got it in on Decenber 23rd. 22 CHAI RMAN OKESON:  Co-Director King.

23 MR STAIDBHAR In sunmary, we basi caIIy, we 23 MR KING M. Chairman, nmenbers of the

24 believe, nade good faith effort not only interns |24 Comission, | concur entirely with Co-Director

25 of the notification and the procedure, but also in |25 Nussneyer's description of the various processes
Page 34 Page 36

1 terns of the substance. We did everything 1 involved here. It is one that involves several

2 possible, given what | think was a very difficult 2 nmoving parts and different |evels of governnent,

3 situation for Cass County. 3 and so it's extrenmely conplicated to achieve all of

4 CHAI RVAN OKESON:  Yeah. 4 the steps necessary to conply with each of the

5 MS. CELESTI NO- HORSEMAN: |'11 ask one question 5 constitutional or statutory requirenents.

6 because | said | would, the thing about where the 6 CHAI RMAN OKESON:  Seens like a little bit of

7 reason you gave was that it was -- 7 gymasti cs.

8 MS. RICHEY: It was easier. 8 MR STAJDUHAR:  Surely.

9 MS. CELESTI NO- HORSEMAN:  -- easier. 9 CHAI RVAN OKESON:  Anyt hing el se? Any ot her

10 MS. RICHEY: W worked with Lori, and we're, 10 guestions?

11 like, there's this little-bitty line, and she goes 11 MS. CELESTI NO- HORSEMAN:  Thank you for being

12 try to be as precise as possible. Because we knew 12 so forthright.

13 we were going to have to do mmjor reprecincting, we 13 CHAI RMAN OKESON:  You have an opportunity to

14 did reach out to the city because it was going to 14  cross-examine, if you'd like it.

15 affect their wards. And we knew if we didn't take 15 MS. WHITE: | really don't have any

16 care of it all this year, we were going to have to 16 cross-exam nation. | do have a question, though.

17 go back again next year when they redid their wards 17 Is there a way, if the situation -- this type

18 and do this all over again. So we did contact 18 situation conmes up, is there not a way that those

19 them and that's why it says easier to help with 19 ten days could have been extended because of the

20 the city wards. 20 holiday to allow for that?

21 MS. NUSSMEYER. M. Chairman, if | could, just 21 CHAI RMAN OKESON:  Well, | think in ternms of

22 to help provide a little nore context. 22 our procedures here, you're really limted to ask

23 CHAI RVAN OKESON: Pl ease. 23 them questions about conmments they nade on the

24 MS. NUSSMEYER  The redistricting standards 24 record in ternms of the presentation, so I'll have

25 are different than our reprecincting standards in 25 to limt you to that.
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1 MS. WHI TE: Ckay. 1 MS. CELESTI NO- HORSEMAN:  Aye.
2 MS. CELESTI NO- HORSEMAN: M. Chair, if | may 2 MS. BECKLEY: Aye.
3 say sonet hi ng. 3 CHAI RMAN OKESON:  The "ayes" have it. The
4 CHAI RVAN OKESON:  Sure. 4 notion carries.
5 MS. CELESTI NO- HORSEMAN:  That ten days is 5 By consent, can we use signature stanps for
6 prescribed by statute, so we cannot change the 6 the orders?
7 statute. That's up to the legislature. It does 7 MR KING For both orders.
8 seem odd that they put that ten days to run 8 CHAI RVAN OKESON:  For both orders.
9 including Christmas and New Year's in that, but 9 VI CE CHAI RVAN OVERHOLT: Yes, consent.
10 they did. 10 MS. CELESTI NO- HORSEMAN:  Consent .
11 MS. WHITE: Correct. Thank you. 11 MS. BECKLEY: Consent.
12 CHAI RVAN OKESON:  And then in addition to your 12 CHAI RMVAN OKESON: Wth that, | believe we've
13 cross-exam nation, if you' d like a rebuttal to 13 finished our business for the day. 1'Il take a
14 anything that was said, you're offered that for 14 notion to adjourn.
15 two minutes. 15 VI CE CHAI RVAN OVERHOLT:  So noved.
16 Thank you. 16 CHAI RVAN OKESON:  Second?
17 MS. RICHEY: Thank you. 17 MS. CELESTI NO- HORSEMAN:  Second.
18 M5. WHITE: | think |'ve stated everything 18 CHAI RVAN OKESON:  All those in favor.
19 that | had -- | felt needed to be addressed. 19 VI CE CHAI RVAN OVERHOLT:  Aye.
20 CHAI RVAN OKESON:  Well, I'mgoing to close the 20 MS. CELESTI NO- HORSEMAN:  Aye.
21 hearing on this matter at this point in time. And 21 MS. BECKLEY: Aye.
22  for purposes of discussion, | nove that the 22 CHAl RMAN OKESON:  Thank you.
23 objection filed in this matter be denied and that 23 (The I ndiana El ection Conmi ssion Public
24  the Conmi ssion adopt Order 2022-7 to approve the 24  Session was adjourned at 2:09 p.m)
25 Cass County precinct establishment order. 25
Page 38 Page 40
1 I's there a second? 1 STATE OF | NDI ANA
2 VI CE CHAI RVAN OVERHOLT:  Second. 2 COUNTY OF HAM LTON
3 CHAI RVAN OKESON: ~ Any further discussion? 3 I, Maria W Collier, a Notary Public in and
4 MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN: | just want to say 4 for said county and state, do hereby certify that the
5 thank you for taking the time out to read the maps, 5 foregoing public session was taken at the time and
6 and thank you for deciding to participate in the 6 place heretofore nmentioned between 1:30 p.m and
7 process. You know, | mean, it's good the county 7 2:09 p.m;
PR 8 That said public session was taken down in
8 got to explain it. You can go back now and tell
9 peopl e there what the problems were. They 9 stenograph notes and afterwards reduced to typewiting
10 obvi ously were operating under an onerous tinme 10 under ny direction; and that the typewritten
. . 11 t ipt i t d of th bli i on.
11 The legislature split your county, and then you had ranscript ts atrue record o € public session
12 I'N WTNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set
12 census data running |ate and everything el se. So, 13 hand d aftixed carial | this 12th d n:
and and affixe notarial sea is ay o
13  you know, it was just the perfect storm so to 2022 W y
14 January, .
14  speak. 15
15 M5. WHITE: Yeah. Well, | appreciate you 16 " N :, .
16 listening to what | had to say, and | al so 17 %ﬂ/ :
Maria W. Collier
17 appreciate everything that the conm ssioners -- all 18 ISl
18  the hoops you had to junp through. 19 e e
19 MR STAJDUHAR:  Thank you. 20
20 CHAI RVAN OKESON:  Anyt hing el se under 21 M Cormission expires:
21 di scussi on? Decenber 5, 2024
22 So we have a notion and a second to approve 22
23 2022-7. Hearing no further discussion, all those 23 Job No. 168495
24 in favor signify by saying "Aye." 24
25 VI CE CHAI RVAN OVERHOLT:  Aye. 25
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      1          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  All right.  Noting it's



      2     1:30, I'm going to call the Indiana Election



      3     Commission public session to order.  Today is



      4     Tuesday, January 4, 2022, 1:30, Conference Room A



      5     here in Government Center South.  Noting that we



      6     have a full commission present:  Myself, Chairman



      7     Paul Okeson; Vice-Chair Suzannah Wilson Overholt;



      8     Member Karen Celestino-Horseman; and proxy for



      9     Litany Pyle, Stephanie Beckley.



     10          I also note that the Indiana Election Division



     11     co-directors, Brad King and Angie Nussmeyer, are



     12     both present as well as co-counsel Matthew Kochevar



     13     and Valerie Warycha.



     14          Our court reporter again is Maria Collier from



     15     Stewart Richardson.  And before we go on, if you're



     16     going to come up and make any presentations to the



     17     Commission, I'll ask that you state your name and



     18     spell it for the court reporter so we have an



     19     accurate record in the minutes.



     20          Moving on, I would ask that the compliance



     21     with the Open Door Law has been verified and



     22     confirm with the co-director.



     23          MR. KING:  Mr. Chairman, members of the



     24     Commission, on behalf of myself and Co-Director



     25     Nussmeyer, I certify that proper notice of this







�



                                                            5



      1     meeting was given in accordance with the Indiana



      2     Open Door Law.



      3          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Thank you.



      4          With that, we move on to administration of the



      5     oath.  If you're planning on providing any



      6     information to the Commission today, please rise



      7     and follow the direction of Co-Counsel Kochevar.



      8          MR. KOCHEVAR:  If you plan to give testimony



      9     before the Indiana Election Commission, please



     10     raise your right hand and please say "I do" after



     11     recitation of the oath.



     12          Do you solemnly swear or affirm that the



     13     testimony you are about to give to the Indiana



     14     Election Commission is the truth, the whole truth,



     15     and nothing but the truth?  Please say "I do."



     16          ALL:  I do.



     17          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Moving on, we have adoption



     18     of county precinct establishment orders by the



     19     Commission.  The Commission has received a request



     20     from the co-directors for the Commission to conduct



     21     a hearing today under Indiana Code 3-11-1.5-18 to



     22     consider the approval of county precinct



     23     establishment orders for Lake County, whose



     24     proposed precinct changes have been reviewed by the



     25     Election Division and Office of Census Data of the
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      1     Legislative Services Agency, and been found to be



      2     in compliance with state law, but for which the



      3     county was unable to provide sufficient time for



      4     publication of legal notice of these proposed



      5     changes so that a voter of the county would have



      6     the right to file an objection to the proposed



      7     changes and request a hearing by the Commission



      8     regarding the matter.



      9          I understand that there are representatives of



     10     Lake County present for the meeting today.  Any of



     11     those who would like to speak on behalf of Lake



     12     County, please step forward.



     13          As we consider any conversation or testimony,



     14     we'll first look at the proposed order, which is



     15     2022-6.  Is there a motion to approve the order?



     16          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  So moved.



     17          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Is there a second?



     18          MS. BECKLEY:  Second.



     19          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Having a motion and a



     20     second, we'll now proceed to any testimony.



     21          Go ahead.  State your name for the record.



     22          MS. ANGERMAN:  LeAnn Angerman.  I'm the



     23     assistant director for Lake County Board of



     24     Elections and Registration.



     25          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Can you spell your name for
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      1     us.



      2          MS. ANGERMAN:  LeAnn, L-e-A-n-n, Angerman,



      3     A-n-g-e-r-m-a-n.



      4          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Thank you.



      5          MS. FAJMAN:  I am Michelle Fajman,



      6     M-i-c-h-e-l-l-e.  Fajman is F-a-j-m-a-n.  I am the



      7     director of the Lake County Board of Elections and



      8     Registration.



      9          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Go ahead.



     10          MS. FAJMAN:  Our submission has now gone



     11     through OCD, and I believe it's been approved by



     12     both of them.  It was not done in order for us to



     13     meet the legal requirements of doing the legal



     14     notice, but I went ahead and posted it anyway in a



     15     way that would be transparent for the voters of



     16     Lake County.  So it was posted on the 24th, but at



     17     that point in time, it had not passed their



     18     approval, but, again, just thought I'd be a little



     19     proactive and if it came in at the last minute,



     20     that it would be ready.  So voters of Lake County



     21     have been notified of our changes, and we would



     22     request approval.



     23          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Any questions?  Anyone want



     24     to add anything?



     25          So we have a motion to accept Order 2022-6 and
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      1     a second.  Hearing nothing further, all those in



      2     favor signify by saying "Aye."



      3          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  Aye.



      4          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  Aye.



      5          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



      6          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Aye.



      7          The "ayes" have it.  The motion carries.



      8     Thank you.



      9          MS. FAJMAN:  Thank you very much.



     10          MS. ANGERMAN:  Thank you very much for your



     11     time.



     12          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Appreciate you coming all



     13     this way to be with us.



     14          MS. ANGERMAN:  Happy to do so.



     15          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Next item on the agenda,



     16     yesterday an objection to proposed precinct



     17     establishment orders from Cass County was filed



     18     with the Indiana Election Division.  A copy of the



     19     objection, which consists of two documents, is



     20     included in our binder under the Cass County tab.



     21          Before proceeding, I move the Commission adopt



     22     the following procedures for consideration of the



     23     matter, which are based on the procedures we've



     24     used for conducting candidate challenge hearings



     25     previously.
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      1          The hearing will begin by recognizing Election



      2     Division staff to provide information about the



      3     documents provided to the Commission members,



      4     including the orders issued by the Cass County



      5     Commissioners, the Election Division co-directors,



      6     and notice of this meeting given to the county and



      7     the objector, Ms. Cynthia White.  Unless there is



      8     objection, the documents provided to the Commission



      9     by the Election Division will be entered into the



     10     record of this meeting.



     11          After the Election Division staff completes



     12     its presentation, the challenger, Ms. White, will



     13     be recognized first.  The challenger or challengers



     14     or authorized representative may present their case



     15     for not more than seven minutes, unless the



     16     Commission votes to allow additional time to the



     17     presenter.  Commission members may ask questions



     18     during the presentation, but the time spent



     19     answering those questions will not count against



     20     the seven minutes allocated.  The Election Division



     21     may signal the Chair, myself, when the presenter's



     22     time is up.



     23          If any presenter offers additional documents



     24     or physical evidence not previously received by the



     25     Commission, then the original must be provided to
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      1     the Election Division, and I'd ask that you hand it



      2     to our co-counsel, Valerie Warycha, down here on my



      3     right to preserve for the record.



      4          A representative for Cass County Commissioners



      5     will be recognized following the presentation of



      6     the objector.  The county representative may also



      7     present their case for not more than seven minutes,



      8     unless the Commission votes to allow additional



      9     time for the presenter from Cass County.



     10          Following the presentation by the objector,



     11     the county representatives may cross-examine the



     12     objector.  Following the presentation by the county



     13     representative, the objector may cross-examine the



     14     county representative.  The cross-examination in



     15     all cases will be limited to two minutes, unless



     16     the Commission votes to allow additional time.



     17     Cross-examination must be limited to questions



     18     regarding statements made by either presenter.



     19     Following the presentation by the county



     20     representative, the objector may present a rebuttal



     21     of no more than two minutes.



     22          The Commission may dismiss the cause of any



     23     challenger who has failed to appear and testify



     24     before the Commission.



     25          Is there any objection from the Commission
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      1     members or any individual present to these



      2     procedures?



      3          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  No.



      4          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Hearing none -- do I need a



      5     second?



      6          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  Do you want a motion



      7     to approve instead of just asking if there's an



      8     objection?



      9          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Well, I moved it, so is



     10     there a second?



     11          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  Sorry.  Second.



     12          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  There's a second.  Any



     13     discussion on the proposed?



     14          Hearing none, all those in favor.



     15          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  Aye.



     16          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  Aye.



     17          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



     18          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Aye.



     19          These are the procedures.



     20          We'll now begin with consideration of this



     21     matter.  The Election Division has provided copies



     22     of the documents from Cass County, the Election



     23     Division, and the Office of Census Data and



     24     Legislative Services Agency in this matter, and a



     25     copy of the notice to the president of the Cass
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      1     County Commissioners in this matter is in your



      2     binders.



      3          We now recognize Cynthia White or her



      4     representative to make the first presentation.



      5          MS. WHITE:  May I read my objection?



      6          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  May I ask a question?



      7          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Sure.



      8          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  Is it the same



      9     objection that you filed with us?



     10          MS. WHITE:  Yes, it is.



     11          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  You need to state and



     12     spell your name.



     13          MS. WHITE:  Go ahead and ask your question.



     14          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  I'm sorry.  Yeah.



     15     You need to state and spell your name for the



     16     record.



     17          MS. WHITE:  Oh, excuse me.  My name is Cynthia



     18     White, C-y-n-t-h-i-a, White, W-h-i-t-e.



     19          MR. TRITT:  Yes.  And I'm John Tritt, J-o-h-n,



     20     T-r-i-t-t.



     21          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  Mr. Chairman?



     22          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Sure.  Go ahead.



     23          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  One point of order.



     24     Since we have had this and I have reviewed this and



     25     Suzannah has reviewed it and I'm sure you have, I
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      1     don't know if our other person has had the



      2     opportunity, but I would like to forego reading of



      3     it unless someone here thinks it's necessary.  It's



      4     already made part of the record.



      5          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.  I'm inclined to



      6     agree, with the exception that they seem to have



      7     driven quite a distance to be here.



      8          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  I think she can add



      9     other comments.



     10          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  We're offering them



     11     seven minutes, so --



     12          MS. WHITE:  Honestly, as she pointed out,



     13     what's in my objection, I don't really have



     14     anything else to add to it, if that's acceptable.



     15     If not, I would be glad to go ahead and read it.



     16          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Have you had a chance to



     17     review it?



     18          MS. BECKLEY:  She's welcome to read it, as far



     19     as I'm concerned.



     20          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  You've got your



     21     seven minutes.  Go ahead.



     22          MS. WHITE:  You would like me to go ahead and



     23     read it?



     24          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Sure, if you would like to.



     25          MS. WHITE:  Honestly, what I would prefer to
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      1     do is answer questions, if that's okay.  I don't



      2     have to read it.



      3          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  That's completely fine.



      4          Does anyone have any questions?



      5          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  I have a question.



      6          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Sure.  Go ahead.



      7          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  So I found some stuff



      8     interesting in your complaint that I don't know if



      9     we can necessarily do anything about it, but it's



     10     bothersome.  The proposed ward and county district



     11     boundary changes, you say those were not filed.



     12     How would an everyday citizen go about getting a



     13     copy to review to see what the new boundaries are?



     14          MS. WHITE:  I appreciate that question.  That



     15     is a big part of my problem.  We were supposed to



     16     have ten days, the voters, to review this



     17     information.  Six of those days the county



     18     courthouse was closed, so we only -- and it was



     19     during a major holiday and a pandemic.  I don't



     20     believe that the voters of Cass County were allowed



     21     the amount of time in order to look at those



     22     documents and also -- and to understand them.



     23          I'd like to show you something right here.



     24     This was part of what was available.  There were



     25     seven pages of these numbers.  These are census
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      1     ward numbers.  I had no idea what they were.



      2     They're not labeled.  I don't think that the



      3     average voter would understand what these are, nor



      4     would they have had the time, even if they did



      5     understand them, to --



      6          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Is that a document you



      7     brought with you?



      8          MS. WHITE:  Yes, it is.



      9          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Would you please give the



     10     original to Ms. Warycha.



     11          MS. WHITE:  Sure.  I'll give you all of them,



     12     if that would be helpful.  I think there's even



     13     more of them.  I apologize for not having them all



     14     separated out for you.



     15          MR. TRITT:  There's one precinct with two



     16     active voters listed.



     17          MS. WHITE:  There may be duplicates in there



     18     because John is also going through there, but there



     19     are seven pages total.



     20          MS. WARYCHA:  I'll give these to you all to



     21     review them now.



     22          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  We can just pass them



     23     along.



     24          MR. KING:  And, Mr. Chairman, we'll direct



     25     those to be labeled as Objector's Exhibit No. 1.
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      1          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  So do you want to go



      2     ahead and explain the significance, then, of No. 1



      3     again now that we have a reference number for the



      4     record.



      5          MS. WHITE:  For those?



      6          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  Yes.



      7          MS. WHITE:  As I said, those are census ward



      8     numbers, which I've never heard of before.  I'm



      9     just here for the voters of Cass County.  This is



     10     not something -- these pages, these numbers are not



     11     labeled.  It does not indicate what they are or



     12     what they represent.  And, again, there were only



     13     four days that the public had access to the county



     14     courthouse to even look at these.  I believe it



     15     would probably take a special kind of software in



     16     order to determine exactly what these numbers



     17     meant.  It would take an extremely long time.  As



     18     you saw, there's seven pages, and you can see how



     19     many numbers are on each page.



     20          MR. TRITT:  It begs the question, is it easier



     21     for whom?  This came from the county commissioners,



     22     but it's not easier for the voters, I would



     23     propose.  I'm a voter in Cass County.  It's not



     24     easier for me.



     25          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  Were the maps -- so
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      1     in our binders we've got, I think, what looks like



      2     it's the same documents as are in Exhibit 1, and



      3     then with those, so it looks like for each precinct



      4     there's that list that you've provided and then a



      5     map of the proposed precinct.  When you went to



      6     look at the documents, were you able to see kind of



      7     that list and then also what that translated to in



      8     terms of the proposed precinct boundaries?



      9          MS. WHITE:  Actually, I was out of town



     10     because it was the holiday, and I did not have an



     11     opportunity to actually go to the courthouse on the



     12     days that they were open.  Another voter got access



     13     to those and made copies of them for me.



     14          One of the things that I think is lacking here



     15     as far as the maps go, there's no overlay to show



     16     people what the exact changes are, and I think that



     17     would have made things much easier to understand by



     18     the voters.



     19          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  When did the county



     20     commissioners vote on this?



     21          MS. WHITE:  I don't know.



     22          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  Was there a meeting



     23     noticed where they sent it out and said it's on the



     24     agenda?



     25          MS. WHITE:  Not that I'm aware of, not that
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      1     was made to the public.  It was probably on their



      2     agenda which they had there at the meeting.



      3          MR. TRITT:  I don't see it.



      4          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  So the only way,



      5     though, that the public could get these to look at



      6     them is, number one, they'd get it in the form of



      7     census data and, number two, they'd have to go down



      8     to the seat of county government to be able to get



      9     them?  They weren't available on the Internet or



     10     were they published in the newspaper?



     11          MS. WHITE:  No, just the notice that it was



     12     going -- that they had been proposed, the boundary



     13     changes, and where they could be seen and what



     14     dates they could be seen, the ten-day period, and



     15     that if you had an objection, it had to be filed by



     16     June 3rd -- or January 3rd at noon.



     17          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  So I notice that



     18     they -- I've just been handed documents that on



     19     December 20th they did do a notice of proposed



     20     precinct boundary changes, and they do list the



     21     precincts that were getting the boundary changes.



     22          MS. WHITE:  Do you know where that was posted?



     23          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  Indiana Media Group



     24     in Greensburg.  Oh, what is it?



     25          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  We can address
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      1     questions to the county.  I think some of these are



      2     more appropriate probably to the county.



      3          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  I would agree.



      4          Okay.  So you have the problem with the



      5     notice.



      6          MS. WHITE:  Correct.



      7          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  Now, moving that



      8     issue aside, your next issue?



      9          MS. WHITE:  My next issue is that the newly



     10     proposed precincts for Deer Creek East, West, Eel



     11     North, Eel East, Noble North, Logansport 4,



     12     Washington South may have familiar names, but it's



     13     not easily found by the voters.  And also --



     14          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  Okay.  My question



     15     is:  What do you mean by that?  Because once these



     16     precincts are adopted and everything, you can go



     17     to -- there's various software out there, probably



     18     for the county and for the state, where you type in



     19     your address and it will tell you the precinct and



     20     it will give you the location where you're going to



     21     go vote.



     22          MS. WHITE:  Okay.



     23          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  And if you register



     24     to vote for the first time, the county clerk will



     25     figure out what precinct and everything you belong
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      1     into.



      2          MS. WHITE:  All right.



      3          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  So I did have a



      4     question as to why that was a concern.



      5          MS. WHITE:  Well, the other part of my concern



      6     with those is that I see 3-11-1.5-3.1 states that



      7     precincts may not be established after June 30,



      8     2019, with fewer than 600 active voters.  Some of



      9     these altered precincts only have four voters, six



     10     voters, or 27 voters.



     11          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  And, you know, I too



     12     thought that's ridiculous.  It is ridiculous.  But



     13     I also understand that, the way it's been explained



     14     to me -- and if I'm incorrect, please let me know.



     15     But the way it's been explained to me is, if you



     16     have a precinct with less than 600 voters, you



     17     can't do it unless that precinct crosses, like, a



     18     congressional district line, a township boundary.



     19     Then you can have less than.  And I think the



     20     problem that probably played a role in here in some



     21     part -- and you live there, I don't -- but they



     22     drew new congressional districts which basically



     23     split your county down the middle, which changed



     24     the ball game, so to speak.  So they can't cross



     25     over that.
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      1          So even though you have -- and I don't know



      2     whether you have vote centers there or not, but if



      3     you have -- you do?  Well, that will make it



      4     somewhat easier, but having to keep track of a



      5     precinct with four voters and to deal with that,



      6     and 27 voters, I'm sure the clerk would probably



      7     not want to have to worry about that either, but



      8     those do take the priority.



      9          Now, do you understand the law to be something



     10     different?



     11          MS. WHITE:  Yeah.  I think I understand



     12     exactly what you're saying.



     13          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  Okay.  So I think



     14     that that was the problem.  I mean, I think you're



     15     right.  I think it's ridiculous.  And I do agree



     16     with you on your -- and this is something I will



     17     ask the county about, is that the reason why they



     18     drew new things was to make it easier to draw the



     19     city council districts.  That's not a reason that's



     20     in the statutes either.



     21          MS. WHITE:  Exactly.



     22          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  So we'll find out



     23     what that means.



     24          So let's see here.  You have "Altered precinct



     25     Logansport 1 under 'General Precinct Information'







�



                                                           22



      1     does not indicate whether this is a new precinct."



      2          MS. WHITE:  Uh-huh.



      3          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  I think -- was that a



      4     new precinct, Director Nussmeyer?  Oh, no.  I got



      5     it.



      6          MR. TRITT:  This map.



      7          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  Yeah.  They don't --



      8     a new precinct becomes one -- the way the change is



      9     interpreted is, if you move the precinct boundary



     10     line, you're basically drawing a brand-new



     11     precinct.  But when you change the name only, then



     12     that's not a new precinct.  It's just the same



     13     precinct with a different name.  Am I correct?



     14          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  I'm going to recognize



     15     Co-Director King.



     16          MR. KING:  Oh, I'm sorry.  Mr. Chair, members



     17     of the Commission, I was just mentioning that since



     18     the witness presented the map, it would now need to



     19     be provided for the record.



     20          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Would you please provide



     21     that to Valerie Warycha.



     22          MR. TRITT:  Yes.  It appears that wards were



     23     drawn instead of majority population.



     24          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  And for the record, will we



     25     make that Exhibit 2?
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      1          MR. KING:  Yes.



      2          MS. NUSSMEYER:  If I might, Mr. Chairman.



      3          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Please.



      4          MS. NUSSMEYER:  So at least in my view, the



      5     IEC-8 form, which is a form created by both



      6     co-directors of the Election Division which asks



      7     for a number of things from the county, including



      8     which precincts may be impacted by altering



      9     precinct boundaries, what the census blocks are and



     10     how those are -- what census blocks compose, if it



     11     is a split census block, that there's aerial



     12     imagery attached to it, the form itself asks a



     13     number of things that aren't necessarily required



     14     in statute.



     15          The term "new precinct," at least from my



     16     perspective, means there's been some sort of change



     17     to the precinct.  But as I understand from the



     18     Office of Census Data, if the precinct name has not



     19     changed, it is not a new precinct.  They only want



     20     to know if it is a new precinct because it is



     21     wholly new.  So that term, if it's a new precinct,



     22     whether it's marked or not, to me, is not a fatal



     23     flaw with the IEC-8 submission because that's



     24     somewhat subjective, depending on who is completing



     25     the form and their understanding of it.
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      1          MR. KING:  Mr. Chairman, members of the



      2     Commission, I agree entirely with Co-Director



      3     Nussmeyer with regard to the legal requirements of



      4     the IEC-8 and the fact that "new precinct" is



      5     somewhat ambiguous because different entities use



      6     it in different ways.



      7          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Some of this seems to be



      8     spelled out in this memo from the Cass County



      9     clerk; correct?



     10          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  That's the memo,



     11     yeah, that sets forth the rationale.



     12          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah, about how these



     13     changes, including the renaming of some districts



     14     or some precinct boundaries --



     15          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  Right.



     16          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  Have you seen this



     17     memo?  Wait a minute.  Yeah.  Have you been



     18     provided a copy of this memo from the clerk of the



     19     Cass County courts?



     20          MS. WHITE:  I have not.



     21          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  I'm going to give you



     22     a copy of it.  It was apparently -- was it filed on



     23     the 1st?



     24          MS. NUSSMEYER:  That's my understanding, yes.



     25     So the counties have to submit certain
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      1     documentation to the State as part of our review,



      2     along with the Office of Census Data, so they would



      3     have filed it at the time of the initial submission



      4     and worked with their assigned staff person to



      5     perfect the filing until it got to a point where



      6     the co-directors could agree it was in good shape



      7     enough to -- it met the legal requirements to have



      8     published notice.



      9          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Would you reflect in the



     10     record that she handed the memo to Ms. White.



     11          Any other questions?



     12          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  Just a minute,



     13     Mr. Chair.  I started to call you "Your Honor."



     14          MS. WHITE:  I've had a chance to read it.



     15     Thank you.



     16          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  I think we've pretty



     17     much covered it.



     18          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Did you have anything else



     19     you'd like to offer?



     20          MS. WHITE:  I don't think so at this time.



     21          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  Is the complainant



     22     provided time for rebuttal?



     23          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah, as established in the



     24     rules.



     25          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  Yeah.  That's what I
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      1     thought.



      2          So you understand that?



      3          MS. WHITE:  Yes.



      4          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  Once you sit down,



      5     then the county will come forward and speak --



      6          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Well, prior to that, the



      7     county will have an opportunity to cross-examine.



      8          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  Okay, okay.  Yeah,



      9     cross-examine.



     10          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  So you may be asked some



     11     questions.



     12          MS. WHITE:  Okay.



     13          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.  Would members of the



     14     county step forward.  State and spell your names



     15     for the record, please.



     16          MR. STAJDUHAR:  My name is Mike Stajduhar, and



     17     I definitely need to spell that name,



     18     S-t-a-j-d-u-h-a-r.  Cass County commissioner.



     19          MS. RICHEY:  My name is Destry Richey.  It's



     20     D-e-s-t-r-y, last name Richey, R-i-c-h-e-y.  And



     21     I'm the Cass County clerk.



     22          MR. GILSINGER:  My name is C.J. Gilsinger.



     23     It's C.J., and Gilsinger is G-i-l-s-i-n-g-e-r.  And



     24     I'm the IT director for Cass County.



     25          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  So prior to giving us your
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      1     presentation, do you have any cross-examination or



      2     questions for the objectors?



      3          MS. RICHEY:  Did any of you call the Cass



      4     County clerk or the commissioner's office?



      5          MS. WHITE:  None of the three of us did.



      6          MS. RICHEY:  Did any of you send an email to



      7     the commissioner or Cass County clerk's office?



      8          MS. WHITE:  I believe Lita Rouser did.  As I



      9     said, there were several people that were



     10     concerned, and I know Lita had taken it upon



     11     herself to email.



     12          MS. RICHEY:  And Lita is the --



     13          MS. WHITE:  She is the chairman of the Cass



     14     County Democrats.



     15          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Would you mind spelling her



     16     name?



     17          MS. WHITE:  Lita Rouser, L-i-t-a, R-o-u-s-e-r.



     18          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Thank you.



     19          MS. RICHEY:  Did any of you actually come in



     20     to the courthouse to view the documents that we had



     21     in the binder that was made available to the



     22     public?



     23          MS. WHITE:  No.  As I stated earlier, I was



     24     out of town because of the holiday on the days that



     25     the courthouse was open.  I don't know that -- I







�



                                                           28



      1     don't know for sure if anybody else was there.



      2          MS. RICHEY:  We only had two people ask



      3     questions and come in to look, and they were



      4     already working in the government building.  I



      5     spent an hour with each one of them explaining



      6     everything, and they did not have any questions



      7     afterwards.



      8          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Okay.  Do you want to just



      9     move into your presentation?



     10          MR. STAJDUHAR:  Yes, yes.  Let's go ahead and



     11     do that.  Thank you for hearing our side of this



     12     matter.  I'd like to mention, first of all, that



     13     not only did we, of course, approve this in a duly



     14     called meeting of the Commission on December 20th,



     15     but we also had discussed this at a prior meeting



     16     of the Commission, I believe, back in either late



     17     September or early October.



     18          I think, as many of you are aware, Cass County



     19     had particularly difficult problems redistricting



     20     because not only were we split between the 2nd and



     21     4th congressional districts, but the lines did not



     22     respect township lines and were extremely



     23     convoluted, which caused us immense problems.  We



     24     tried to make good faith effort to equalize



     25     districts within our council, for example.  That
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      1     resulted in having to shift a precinct from one



      2     council district to another.



      3          There was just a lot of complications.  We



      4     made our best faith effort.  Even with regard to



      5     the county commissioner districts, which we are not



      6     required to equalize because of population, we



      7     actually made a change there to try to make that a



      8     little more equal.  So we made every possible good



      9     faith effort to do the right thing for the county



     10     voters.



     11          I'd like to turn it over now to Destry.



     12          MS. RICHEY:  In regards to some of the



     13     townships, the reason why there's only four or six



     14     or 27 is that they only took one census block out



     15     of the township, and we had to turn that into its



     16     own precinct because of congressional lines.  Now,



     17     where Deer Creek was concerned, they did sort of



     18     divide that one a little bit better but not by



     19     much.  But we've tried to work with what we had.



     20          We also know that the problem was that you



     21     have to have, at maximum, a 10 percent population



     22     discrepancy between your largest council district



     23     and your lowest council district.  Ours was over



     24     20 percent.  So we had to redo the precincts to be



     25     able to get every -- the council districts in
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      1     compliance with that 10 percent.



      2          As Mike stated on the commissioners, we tried



      3     to make -- yes, it has to be condensed and



      4     confined, but we did try to divide as best as we



      5     could by population also.  So we actually took one



      6     whole township out of one of the districts and



      7     stuck it in another district to try and make it as



      8     fair as possible.



      9          MR. STAJDUHAR:  And I believe, with regard to



     10     council districts, I think we got our variation



     11     down to 6 percent.  Am I correct on that?



     12          MS. RICHEY:  It's almost at 10 percent, but,



     13     remember, we had that new housing addition coming



     14     in --



     15          MR. STAJDUHAR:  That's right.



     16          MS. RICHEY:  -- so we made that low one the



     17     housing addition, so once that goes in in one or



     18     two years, we're still in compliance.



     19          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  Just a note.  What we



     20     have been finding here in our commission is that



     21     the public really seems to be -- transparency is



     22     the new buzzword, especially for the political



     23     process.  And so it doesn't matter whether they're



     24     Republicans; it doesn't matter whether they're



     25     Democrats.  They come together in unity on that
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      1     particular issue.



      2          So I can understand the concern.  I mean, I



      3     understand the difficulty you had in putting this



      4     all together because of the change in the



      5     congressional districts.  But I would just say for



      6     the future, as we're finding, if you want to avoid



      7     this kind of thing, if you can put it on your



      8     websites and tell people to go to the website and



      9     just be honest and say we're dealing with this; if



     10     you have a map, put it up there; if you don't have



     11     a map, tell them we don't have a map but this is



     12     what we have.



     13          MS. RICHEY:  I'm going to defer to C.J.  We do



     14     have a GIS on our website that they can look at and



     15     put in their address and --



     16          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  But I'm talking about



     17     the process beforehand.  If you're going to tell



     18     them in the middle of a pandemic over a holiday



     19     that you've got ten days to file a question or



     20     complaint, you need to give them access to it.  I



     21     mean, there are people -- even though the



     22     courthouse would have been open for four of those



     23     ten days, there's still people out there that don't



     24     want to, because they're immunocompromised or



     25     whatever, that do not want to have to go somewhere.
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      1          MS. RICHEY:  And I did -- back in October,



      2     when I sent everything in to the Election



      3     Department -- Commission, I also emailed the county



      4     chairs all those IEC-8s and all the maps and



      5     everything, and I do have the emails to prove it.



      6          I then redid it last week per Lita's -- Lita



      7     Rouser's emails to me, and at 3:00 a.m., I received



      8     the last one.  So I went in early at 6:30 and



      9     scanned it all back in and sent it back out to



     10     everybody so that we could be as transparent,



     11     because I understand that people are scared to come



     12     out, we're in a pandemic.  And we have tried



     13     everything possible that we could to make it as



     14     transparent as possible.  And I would have taken



     15     the time out, Mike would have taken the time out,



     16     C.J. would have taken the time out to talk to



     17     people.  I even gave my cell phone number out.



     18          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  And I note too for the



     19     record in her cross-examination asking if they



     20     reached out, other than the email, which you sound



     21     like you've been quite responsive to, from



     22     Ms. Rouser, there has been nothing.



     23          MS. RICHEY:  Yes, correct.



     24          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  So the maps were done



     25     in October?
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      1          MS. RICHEY:  That's when we submitted all of



      2     the proposals to the Indiana Election Division.  We



      3     actually sent it in October 14th.



      4          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  But after they come



      5     in, they have to be approved by the census group



      6     and they have to be approved by our co-directors.



      7          MS. RICHEY:  Right, right.



      8          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  And then you finally



      9     get the word back that it's okay.



     10          MS. RICHEY:  That it's okay to put it in the



     11     paper.  And we received notice -- I think it was



     12     signed on the 14th by the Election Commission, and



     13     we received it about that time.



     14          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  The 14th of December?



     15          MS. RICHEY:  December.  Sorry.  And then we



     16     had to wait for the weekend.  The commissioners met



     17     on the 20th to sign the order, the ordinance, and



     18     then to give the okay to put it in our paper.  Our



     19     paper requires three days before they'll even put



     20     it in.  So they were going to put it on



     21     December 24th, and our auditor worked some magic



     22     and got it in on December 23rd.



     23          MR. STAJDUHAR:  In summary, we basically, we



     24     believe, made good faith effort not only in terms



     25     of the notification and the procedure, but also in
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      1     terms of the substance.  We did everything



      2     possible, given what I think was a very difficult



      3     situation for Cass County.



      4          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Yeah.



      5          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  I'll ask one question



      6     because I said I would, the thing about where the



      7     reason you gave was that it was --



      8          MS. RICHEY:  It was easier.



      9          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  -- easier.



     10          MS. RICHEY:  We worked with Lori, and we're,



     11     like, there's this little-bitty line, and she goes



     12     try to be as precise as possible.  Because we knew



     13     we were going to have to do major reprecincting, we



     14     did reach out to the city because it was going to



     15     affect their wards.  And we knew if we didn't take



     16     care of it all this year, we were going to have to



     17     go back again next year when they redid their wards



     18     and do this all over again.  So we did contact



     19     them, and that's why it says easier to help with



     20     the city wards.



     21          MS. NUSSMEYER:  Mr. Chairman, if I could, just



     22     to help provide a little more context.



     23          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Please.



     24          MS. NUSSMEYER:  The redistricting standards



     25     are different than our reprecincting standards in
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      1     3-11-1.5.  So the county has to look at too when



      2     they need to recertify or redraw their commissioner



      3     and council districts in 2021.  In nearly all



      4     cases, when they draw those districts, they cannot



      5     cross a precinct boundary.



      6          So if they had population issues, the real



      7     option for the county is to bust up the precincts



      8     to create what they need in order to achieve their



      9     equal population, which is a requirement.  When



     10     they're drawing county council districts, it will



     11     be a requirement of municipalities in nearly all



     12     cases but not every.  There's exceptions to the



     13     statute when they redraw next year in 2022 -- well,



     14     this year when they are commanded to also redraw or



     15     recertify those municipal district boundaries.



     16          MR. STAJDUHAR:  So that issue kind of



     17     conflicted with our other goal of trying to reduce



     18     the number of precincts, so it was a balancing act,



     19     and we did the best we could to allow the city some



     20     flexibility and also reduce the number of precincts



     21     in the city.



     22          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Co-Director King.



     23          MR. KING:  Mr. Chairman, members of the



     24     Commission, I concur entirely with Co-Director



     25     Nussmeyer's description of the various processes
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      1     involved here.  It is one that involves several



      2     moving parts and different levels of government,



      3     and so it's extremely complicated to achieve all of



      4     the steps necessary to comply with each of the



      5     constitutional or statutory requirements.



      6          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Seems like a little bit of



      7     gymnastics.



      8          MR. STAJDUHAR:  Surely.



      9          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Anything else?  Any other



     10     questions?



     11          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  Thank you for being



     12     so forthright.



     13          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  You have an opportunity to



     14     cross-examine, if you'd like it.



     15          MS. WHITE:  I really don't have any



     16     cross-examination.  I do have a question, though.



     17     Is there a way, if the situation -- this type



     18     situation comes up, is there not a way that those



     19     ten days could have been extended because of the



     20     holiday to allow for that?



     21          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Well, I think in terms of



     22     our procedures here, you're really limited to ask



     23     them questions about comments they made on the



     24     record in terms of the presentation, so I'll have



     25     to limit you to that.
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      1          MS. WHITE:  Okay.



      2          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  Mr. Chair, if I may



      3     say something.



      4          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Sure.



      5          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  That ten days is



      6     prescribed by statute, so we cannot change the



      7     statute.  That's up to the legislature.  It does



      8     seem odd that they put that ten days to run



      9     including Christmas and New Year's in that, but



     10     they did.



     11          MS. WHITE:  Correct.  Thank you.



     12          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  And then in addition to your



     13     cross-examination, if you'd like a rebuttal to



     14     anything that was said, you're offered that for



     15     two minutes.



     16          Thank you.



     17          MS. RICHEY:  Thank you.



     18          MS. WHITE:  I think I've stated everything



     19     that I had -- I felt needed to be addressed.



     20          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Well, I'm going to close the



     21     hearing on this matter at this point in time.  And



     22     for purposes of discussion, I move that the



     23     objection filed in this matter be denied and that



     24     the Commission adopt Order 2022-7 to approve the



     25     Cass County precinct establishment order.
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      1          Is there a second?



      2          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  Second.



      3          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Any further discussion?



      4          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  I just want to say



      5     thank you for taking the time out to read the maps,



      6     and thank you for deciding to participate in the



      7     process.  You know, I mean, it's good the county



      8     got to explain it.  You can go back now and tell



      9     people there what the problems were.  They



     10     obviously were operating under an onerous time.



     11     The legislature split your county, and then you had



     12     census data running late and everything else.  So,



     13     you know, it was just the perfect storm, so to



     14     speak.



     15          MS. WHITE:  Yeah.  Well, I appreciate you



     16     listening to what I had to say, and I also



     17     appreciate everything that the commissioners -- all



     18     the hoops you had to jump through.



     19          MR. STAJDUHAR:  Thank you.



     20          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Anything else under



     21     discussion?



     22          So we have a motion and a second to approve



     23     2022-7.  Hearing no further discussion, all those



     24     in favor signify by saying "Aye."



     25          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  Aye.
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      1          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  Aye.



      2          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



      3          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  The "ayes" have it.  The



      4     motion carries.



      5          By consent, can we use signature stamps for



      6     the orders?



      7          MR. KING:  For both orders.



      8          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  For both orders.



      9          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  Yes, consent.



     10          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  Consent.



     11          MS. BECKLEY:  Consent.



     12          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  With that, I believe we've



     13     finished our business for the day.  I'll take a



     14     motion to adjourn.



     15          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  So moved.



     16          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Second?



     17          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  Second.



     18          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  All those in favor.



     19          VICE CHAIRMAN OVERHOLT:  Aye.



     20          MS. CELESTINO-HORSEMAN:  Aye.



     21          MS. BECKLEY:  Aye.



     22          CHAIRMAN OKESON:  Thank you.



     23          (The Indiana Election Commission Public



     24     Session was adjourned at 2:09 p.m.)



     25
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